
 

 

 

North Central Public Health District 
 

 

North Central Public Health District 

Full Board of Health Meeting 
 

 

Date: Tuesday, January 12th, 2021 
Time: 4:00 PM 
To Be Held Electronically: 
To Join Zoom Meeting please use link below: 
https://wascocounty-org.zoom.us/j/87261084328 

Meeting ID: 872 6108 4328 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Call to Order 

 Introductions 

 Establish a Quorum 

 Requests to add items to the Agenda 

 Requests for Public Comments 
 

2. Action Items 

 11/10/2020 Board of Health Meeting Minutes 

 A/P Check Report November 2020, December 2020 

 Calendar of 2021 Board of Health Meetings 

 NCPHD 2021 Holidays (facility closed) 
 

3. Non-Action Items 

 COVID-19 Update 

 FY 2020-21 Budget Updates 
o COVID Funding 

 BOH Members Liability Coverage 

 Administrator Position Hiring  

 Contracts Summary (December 2020, January 2021) 

 Interim Administrator Report 
o January 2021 (Included: December 2020) 

 
 
 
 
 
Note: This agenda is subject to last minute changes. 
 
Meetings are ADA accessible. If special accommodations are needed please contact NCPHD in advance at (541) 506-
2626. TDD 1-800-735-2900. NCPHD does not discriminate against individuals with disabilities. 

**If necessary, an Executive Session may be held in accordance with: ORS 192.660(2) (a) to consider the 
employment of a public officer, employee, staff member or individual agent; ORS 192.660 (2) (d) Labor Negotiations; 
ORS 192.660 (2) (h) Legal Rights; ORS 192.660 (2) (e) Property; ORS 192.660 (2) (i) Personnel** 

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://wascocounty-org.zoom.us/j/87261084328&sa=D&source=calendar&ust=1601743634752000&usg=AOvVaw2xjCy4G3gtuK15uqx93ls1
https://www.google.com/url?q=https://wascocounty-org.zoom.us/j/87261084328&sa=D&source=calendar&ust=1601743634752000&usg=AOvVaw2xjCy4G3gtuK15uqx93ls1


 

S:\Meeting Minutes & Agendas\Board of Health Meetings\Minutes\2020\Board of Health Meeting Minutes 11 10 2020  1 

 
NORTH CENTRAL PUBLIC HEALTH DISTRICT 

419 East Seventh Street 
The Dalles, OR 97058-2676 

541-506-2600 
www.ncphd.org 

North Central Public Health District  
Board of Health Meeting Minutes 

November 10
th

, 2020 

 
In Attendance: Commissioner Joan Bird – Sherman County; Jayme Mason – Sherman County; Commissioner 
Leslie Wetherell – Gilliam County; Dani Sperry – Gilliam County; Commissioner Kathy Schwartz – Wasco County 
 
Staff Present: Shellie Campbell – Interim Director NCPHD; Kathi Hall – Fiscal Manager NCPHD; Nicole Bailey – 
EH Supervisor NCPHD; Dr. Mimi McDonell – Medical Officer NCPHD; Laurie Jupe – Program Secretary NCPHD; 
Becky Swora – Nurse Practioner NCPHD 
 
Guests Present: None 
 
Minutes taken by: Laurie Jupe 
 
 
Public Meeting was called to order at 3:01 p.m. by Commissioner Kathy Schwartz. 
 
 

SUMMARY OF ACTIONS TAKEN 
 

MOTION by Commissioner Joan Bird, and seconded by Commissioner Leslie Wetherell, to accept the October 
13th, 2020 Executive Committee meeting minutes as presented. 
Vote:  5-0 
Yes: Commissioner Joan Bird – Sherman County; Jayme Mason – Sherman County; Commissioner 

Leslie Wetherell – Gilliam County; Dani Sperry – Gilliam County; Commissioner Kathy Schwartz 
– Wasco County 

No: 0 
Abstain: 0 
Motion: Carried 
 
MOTION by Jayme Mason, and seconded by Dani Sperry, to accept the updated NCPHD AD_Vacation Policy 
as presented. 
Vote:  5-0 
Yes: Commissioner Joan Bird – Sherman County; Jayme Mason – Sherman County; Commissioner 

Leslie Wetherell – Gilliam County; Dani Sperry – Gilliam County; Commissioner Kathy Schwartz 
– Wasco County 

No: 0 
Abstain: 0 
Motion: Carried 
 
 
 
 

http://www.ncphd.org/


 

S:\Meeting Minutes & Agendas\Board of Health Meetings\Minutes\2020\Board of Health Meeting Minutes 11 10 2020  2 

MOTION by Commissioner Leslie Wetherell, and seconded by Dani Sperry, to accept the Fiscal Resolution 
2020-05 a resolution accepting and appropriating additional and unanticipated OHA funds during fiscal year 
2020-21 as presented. 
Vote:  5-0 
Yes: Commissioner Joan Bird – Sherman County; Jayme Mason – Sherman County; Commissioner 

Leslie Wetherell – Gilliam County; Dani Sperry – Gilliam County; Commissioner Kathy Schwartz 
– Wasco County 

No: 0 
Abstain: 0 
Motion: Carried 
 
MOTION by Commissioner Joan Bird, and seconded by Jayme Mason, to accept the A/P Checks Issued 
reports for October 2020 as presented. 
Vote:  5-0 
Yes: Commissioner Joan Bird – Sherman County; Jayme Mason – Sherman County; Commissioner 

Leslie Wetherell – Gilliam County; Dani Sperry – Gilliam County; Commissioner Kathy Schwartz 
– Wasco County 

No: 0 
Abstain: 0 
Motion: Carried 
 
MOTION by Commissioner Joan Bird, and seconded by Jayme Mason, to direct NCPHD staff to amend the By 
Laws to reflect the Board of Health move to Full Board of Health meetings every month and the change of 
the meeting times. 
Vote:  5-0 
Yes: Commissioner Joan Bird – Sherman County; Jayme Mason – Sherman County; Commissioner 

Leslie Wetherell – Gilliam County; Dani Sperry – Gilliam County; Commissioner Kathy Schwartz 
– Wasco County 

No: 0 
Abstain: 0 
Motion: Carried 
 
 
WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS 
 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 

1. Full Board of Health Meetings vs. Executive Committee meetings discussion. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

1. None. 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 

1. Approval of past meeting minutes. 
1 A motion was made to approve the October 13, 2020 Board of Health Executive Committee meeting 

minutes as presented. 
2. Approval of updated NCPHD Vacation Policy. 

1 A motion was made to approve the updated NCPHD Vacation Policy as presented. 
3. Approval of Fiscal Resolution. 

1 A motion was made to approve the Fiscal Resolution 2020-05 for the fiscal year 2020-21 as presented. 
4. Approval of A/P Check report. 

1 A motion was made to approve the A/P Check report of October 2020 as presented. 



 

S:\Meeting Minutes & Agendas\Board of Health Meetings\Minutes\2020\Board of Health Meeting Minutes 11 10 2020  3 

5. Full Board of Health Meetings vs. Executive Committee meetings discussion. 
1. It was the unanimous consensus of the Board to move to Full Board of Health meetings, to be held 

each month, moving forward. 
2. Executive Committee meetings will be called at the discretion of the Board as necessary. 
3. It was the unanimous consensus of the Board to change the Board of Health meeting times from 3:00 

p.m. - 5:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m. moving forward. 
4. NCPHD staff were directed by the Board to make the necessary changes to the NCPHD By Laws. 

6. Approval to direct NCPHD By Laws changes. 
1. A motion was made to direct the NCPHD staff to change the NCPHD By Laws to reflect the Board of 

Health meeting and time changes. 
 

NON-ACTION ITEMS 
 

1. COVID-19 Update 
1. Dr. Mimi McDonell made a presentation to the board outlining the current COVID-19 status. 

a) An uptick in local cases continues across all three counties. 
b) NCPHD’s COVID Team work continues: monitoring cases, testing, contact tracing, and ensuring the 

communities are safe. 
c) Questions and feedback were requested. 

2. Commissioner Schwartz requested that Dr. McDonell’s Power Point presentation be forwarded to the 
Board members for their information and use in their counties. 

 

2. FY 2020-21 Budget Updates 
1. COVID-19 Funding update. 

a) Kathi Hall updated the board on the latest information on the COVID-19 funding. 
b) Questions and feedback were requested. 

2. First Quarter Update 
a) Kathi Hall updated the board on the latest information on the first quarter funding. 
b) Questions and feedback were requested. 

3. Commissioner Schwartz directed Kathi Hall to bring a Fiscal Update to the next Board meeting that 
reflects what monies are (or will be) on hand and forthcoming, timelines for spending, and what 
monies will be available to be carried over into 2021. 
 

3. Salary Survey 
1. Shellie Campbell notified the Board that Linda Webber, who runs One Tree Hill, will do an analysis and 

review to bring the previous Salary Survey up to date to current standards. 
a) An in-house pay equity analysis will look at compensation policies. 
b) Linda will develop a strategic Salary Compensation Plan which will be brought to the Board at the 

January 2021 meeting. 
2. Commissioner Schwartz recommended that NCPHD lay out exactly where NCPHD wants their salaries 

to be. 
a) A written Salary Compensation Plan and proposal for funding needs to be drawn up. 
b) This information will be necessary before presenting any plan to the Wasco County 

Commissioners. 
 

4. Annex A Space 
1. Shellie Campbell reviewed the Annex A and Annex C space and staffing with the Board. 
2. Commissioner Schwartz directed Shellie to create a concrete detailed plan with itemized needs and 

costs for the use of the upstairs Annex A space. 
a) Include an itemized quote of estimated real costs for work needed for painting, flooring/carpets, 

bathroom improvements, and other items that would be needed. 
b) Continue to look into various funding assistance opportunities i.e. grants, other. Commissioner 

Bird volunteered to research possible grant opportunities. 
 



 

S:\Meeting Minutes & Agendas\Board of Health Meetings\Minutes\2020\Board of Health Meeting Minutes 11 10 2020  4 

 
5. Environmental Health 

1. Nicole Bailey, Environmental Health Specialist, updated the Board about the recent changes for the 
license fees, for 2021 for the local restaurants. 

2. No fee adjustment proposal can be presented at this time as no funding opportunity was able to be 
located. 

3. Further possible funding alternatives are still under investigation. 
 

6. Administrator Position Hiring Process 
1. Shellie recommended the hiring of an outside local firm, One Tree Hill run by Linda Webber to 

contract for the Human Resources services to oversee the hiring of the next NCPHD Director. 
2. The provided services, covered in the costs, would be as follows: 

a) Director recruitment process (40-80 hours=$5,000-$10,000) 
 Meet with commission chair and interim director to create a job description for the position in 

order to outline responsibilities and qualifications as well as gain an understanding of a “good 
fit” for the team 

 Establish a compensation package for position 
 Establish advertising budget and channels 
 Create a posting and post the position 
 Screen applicant resumes and virtually screen qualified applicants 
 Send summary of qualified and recommended applicants along with their résumés for 

approval for a formal interview with staff 
 Schedule virtual interviews with qualified applicants 

3. NCPHD is seeking financial support from each of the three counties it oversees: Wasco, Sherman, and 
Gilliam Counties. Currently, NCPHD also has some funds available that could be used to support a 
share in the cost of hiring the recruitment firm. 

a) The plan for shared financing would go as follows: 
 North Central Public Health District: $2,500 
 Wasco County: $2,500 
 Sherman County: $2,500 
 Gilliam County: $2,500 
 Total Cost for services not to exceed: $10,000 

4. Commissioner Schwartz recommended a meeting for Shellie, Commissioner Schwartz and Linda 
Webber to discuss the plans. 

5. Commissioner Schwartz recommended a funding request proposal, outlining the costs and services, 
be sent to all three Counties to be presented at the next County Court meetings and County 
Commissioner meetings. 

6. It was the unanimous consensus of the Board to move ahead with requesting funding from the 
Counties for the hiring of One Tree Hill and Linda Webber. 
 

7. Contracts Summary 
1. FIXED ACCOUNT AMENDMENT to Group Flexible Purchase Deferred Variable Annuity Contract 

between Nationwide Life Insurance Company and North Central Public Health District. This 
amendment reflects a change in the fixed account rate. 
Fiscal impact: Not applicable 

2. AGREEMENT between ODS Community Health Participating Provider 2020 and North Central Public 
Health District. This agreement is to continue to have NCPHD as a preferred provider for the insurance 
company. 
Fiscal Impact: Not applicable 

3. OHA 159826-14 FY20 exe Fourteenth Amendment to Oregon Health Authority 2019-2021 
Intergovernmental Agreement for PE-62 Overdose Prevention. 
Fiscal Impact: NCPHD will receive $74,692. 

4. MOU between One Community Health and North Central Public Health District regarding community 
engagement, education, support and outreach for active surveillance of COVID-19 case contacts. 



 

S:\Meeting Minutes & Agendas\Board of Health Meetings\Minutes\2020\Board of Health Meeting Minutes 11 10 2020  5 

Fiscal Impact: Not applicable 
5. AMENDMENT First Amendment to Agreement for Professional Services between North Central Public 

Health District and Robin Pashek. This amendment extends the termination date for COVID-19 contact 
tracing. 
Fiscal Impact: No additional fiscal impact. 

6. ENGAGEMENT LETTER between Pauly, Rogers, and CO., PC and North Central Public Health District. 
The letter covers the audit for the fiscal year ending 6/30/20. 
Fiscal Impact: Cost to NCPHD of $17,000. 
 

8. Directors Report 
1. Shellie Campbell presented the Interim Directors report to the Board. 
2. Questions and feedback were requested. 

 
 
 
 
Being no further business to be conducted at this time, Commissioner Kathy Schwartz adjourned the Board of 
Health meeting at 4:51 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________    ______________________ 
Signature        Date 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Printed Name 



Check Date Check Number Vendor Name Amount
11/10/2020 772 IRS $14,864.75 

Held in Que 773 ASIFLEX $190.00 
11/10/2020 774 P E R S $15,901.69 
11/10/2020 775 OREGON STATE, DEPT OF REVENUE $3,899.15 
11/6/2020 776 IRS $475.18 
11/6/2020 777 OREGON STATE, DEPT OF REVENUE $113.24 

11/25/2020 778 IRS $13,758.66 
11/25/2020 779 ASIFLEX $92.00 
11/25/2020 780 P E R S $15,713.73 
11/25/2020 781 OREGON STATE, DEPT OF REVENUE $3,642.94 
11/4/2020 13895 AMERICAN FAMILY LIFE ASSURANCE $188.00 Payroll A/P  
11/6/2020 13896 BEERY ELSNER & HAMMOND LLP $987.00 
11/6/2020 13897 CAMPBELL, SHELLIE $39.90 
11/6/2020 13898 CIS TRUST $40,963.28 
11/6/2020 13899 CLIA LABORATORY PROGRAM $360.00 
11/6/2020 13900 CURASCRIPT SPECIALTY, DISTRIBUTION $4,563.40 
11/6/2020 13901 HENRY SCHEIN $311.08 
11/6/2020 13902 MCDONELL, MIRIAM $92.27 
11/6/2020 13903 OFFICE DEPOT $127.64 
11/6/2020 13904 OPTIMIST PRINTERS $85.00 
11/6/2020 13905 OREGON STATE, DEPT HUMAN SERVICES-

OFS
$1,613.89 

11/6/2020 13906 OREGON STATE, DEPT OF HUMAN SERVICES $15,271.48 

11/6/2020 13907 PAULY, ROGERS & CO., P.C. $8,500.00 
11/6/2020 13908 UPS $166.47 
11/6/2020 13909 WASCO COUNTY $23,057.56 

11/13/2020 13910 AFFORDABLE CARE NW, DBA HELPING 
HANDS

$275.00 

11/13/2020 13911 AHLERS & ASSOCIATES $860.00 
11/13/2020 13912 BANKMAN, JUDY $562.50 
11/13/2020 13913 H2OREGON BOTTLED WATER INC. $69.50 
11/13/2020 13914 HEIDI SOFIA VENTURE DBA, HEIDI VENTURE 

CONSULTING
$400.00 

11/13/2020 13915 HENRY SCHEIN $110.47 
11/13/2020 13916 IMMENSE IMAGERY $2,762.50 
11/13/2020 13917 MID-COLUMBIA MEDICAL CENTER $3,105.00 
11/13/2020 13918 NELSON TIRE FACTORY DBA, GILL'S POINT S $80.00 

11/13/2020 13919 OFFICE DEPOT $720.97 
11/13/2020 13920 OR STATE PUBLIC, HEALTH LABORATORY $163.61 
11/13/2020 13921 OREGON STATE, DEPT OF ENVIRONMENTAL 

QUA
$1,200.00 

11/13/2020 13922 PACIFIC SOURCE, COMMUNITY SOLUTIONS $109.80 

11/13/2020 13923 PASHEK, ROBIN $98.00 
11/13/2020 13924 RICOH USA INC. $173.47 
11/13/2020 13925 SATCOM GLOBAL INC. $62.47 
11/13/2020 13926 STAPLES ADVANTAGE $266.98 

NCPHD
Accounts Payable Checks

Issued November 2020

Payroll A/P (EFT)



11/13/2020 13927 U.S. CELLULAR $832.67 
11/13/2020 13928 US BANK $4,535.42 
11/13/2020 13929 MID-COLUMBIA MEDICAL CENTER $575.00 
11/19/2020 13930 CA STATE DISPURSEMENT UNIT $231.50 
11/19/2020 13931 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION $1,765.00 
11/20/2020 13932 CYTOCHECK LABORATORY LLC $265.00 
11/20/2020 13933 NELSON TIRE FACTORY DBA, GILL'S POINT S $651.31 

11/20/2020 13934 OFFICE DEPOT $520.87 
11/20/2020 13935 OPTIMIST PRINTERS $195.50 
11/20/2020 13936 OR GOV'T ETHICS COMMISSION $548.87 
11/20/2020 13937 OREGON STATE, DEPT HUMAN SERVICES-

OFS
$2,489.67 

11/20/2020 13938 PASHEK, ROBIN $98.00 
11/20/2020 13939 WASCO COUNTY $1,505.64 
11/25/2020 13940 MID-COLUMBIA MEDICAL CENTER $5,130.00 
11/25/2020 13941 WASCO COUNTY $11,786.26 
11/25/2020 13942 FRANKLIN, SARAH $3,862.50 
11/25/2020 13943 OPTIMIST PRINTERS $106.00 
11/25/2020 13944 OREGON STATE, DEPT HUMAN SERVICES-

OFS
$200.00 

11/25/2020 13945 PARAGARD DIRECT $1,249.96 
11/25/2020 13946 PASHEK, ROBIN $98.00 
11/25/2020 13947 UPS $124.00 
11/25/2020 13948 WASCO COUNTY $9,295.26 

TOTAL: $222,065.01 

NCPHD Board of Health authorizes check numbers 13895 - 13948 and payroll EFT  
numbers 772 - 781 totalling $222,065.01.

Signature  _____________________________       Date  _____________

Printed Name  ________________________________
Commissioner Kathy Schwartz
Chair, NCPHD Board of Health

Payroll A/P



Check Date Check Number Vendor Name Amount

12/10/2020 782 IRS $19,714.63 

12/10/2020 783 ASIFLEX $141.00 

12/10/2020 784 P E R S $24,012.73 

12/10/2020 785 OREGON STATE, DEPT OF REVENUE $4,656.88 

12/24/2020 786 IRS $15,814.09 

12/24/2020 787 ASIFLEX $141.00 

Held in Que 788 P E R S $16,645.76 

12/24/2020 789 OREGON STATE, DEPT OF REVENUE $4,087.25 

12/3/2020 13949 BANKMAN, JUDY $412.50 

12/3/2020 13950 CIS TRUST $35,578.96 

12/3/2020 13951 OFFICE DEPOT $144.14 

12/3/2020 13952 OR STATE PUBLIC, HEALTH LABORATORY $169.27 

12/3/2020 13953 PARKMAN & WILKEN LLC $446.90 

12/3/2020 13954 STAEHNKE, DAVID $111.69 

12/3/2020 13955 AMERICAN FAMILY LIFE ASSURANCE $188.00 

12/4/2020 13956 CA STATE DISPURSEMENT UNIT $231.50 

12/4/2020 13957 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION $1,765.00 

12/10/2020 13958 AFFORDABLE CARE NW, DBA HELPING 

HANDS

$220.00 

12/10/2020 13959 AMERICAN ASSOCIATION, OF BIOANALYSTS $150.00 

12/10/2020 13960 BEERY ELSNER & HAMMOND LLP $1,010.50 

12/10/2020 13961 FRANKLIN, SARAH $3,862.50 

12/10/2020 13962 HENRY SCHEIN $1,059.16 

12/10/2020 13963 OREGON STATE, DEPT OF ENVIRONMENTAL 

QUA

$1,200.00 

12/10/2020 13964 RICOH USA INC. $28.12 

12/10/2020 13965 SAIF CORPORATION $894.16 

12/10/2020 13966 SATCOM GLOBAL INC. $61.95 

12/10/2020 13967 SHRED-IT USA $198.48 

12/10/2020 13968 STAPLES ADVANTAGE $66.97 

12/10/2020 13969 U.S. CELLULAR $832.67 

12/17/2020 13970 AHLERS & ASSOCIATES $860.00 

12/17/2020 13971 H2OREGON BOTTLED WATER INC. $24.00 

12/17/2020 13972 MID-COLUMBIA MEDICAL CENTER $575.00 

12/17/2020 13973 NACCHO $240.00 

12/17/2020 13974 OFFICE DEPOT $494.00 

12/17/2020 13975 ONE TREE HILL, LLC, LYNDA MAREE WEBBER $1,593.75 

12/17/2020 13976 PASHEK, ROBIN $210.00 

12/17/2020 13977 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. $5,417.11 

12/17/2020 13978 US BANK $2,752.90 

12/17/2020 13979 WASCO COUNTY $60.13 

12/17/2020 13980 CA STATE DISPURSEMENT UNIT $231.50 

12/17/2020 13981 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION $1,765.00 

12/18/2020 13982 THE BARGAIN CTR DBA, DISCOVER RENTALS $5,250.00 

12/23/2020 13983 BEERY ELSNER & HAMMOND LLP $634.50 

NCPHD

Accounts Payable Checks

Issued December 2020

PAYROLL A/P (EFT)

PAYROLL A/P  

PAYROLL A/P



12/23/2020 13984 CYTOCHECK LABORATORY LLC $410.00 

12/23/2020 13985 INTERPATH LABORATORY INC. $20.11 

12/23/2020 13986 MID-COLUMBIA MEDICAL CENTER $1,080.00 

12/23/2020 13987 PASHEK, ROBIN $168.00 

12/23/2020 13988 UPS $124.00 

12/29/2020 13989 OFFICE DEPOT $426.47 

12/29/2020 13990 PASHEK, ROBIN $168.00 

12/29/2020 13991 UMATILLA COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH $25.00 

12/29/2020 13992 UPS $42.45 

12/30/2020 13993 CA STATE DISPURSEMENT UNIT $231.50 

12/30/2020 13994 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION $1,765.00 

TOTAL: $158,414.23 

NCPHD Board of Health authorizes check numbers 13949 - 13994 and payroll EFT  

numbers 782 - 789 totalling $158,414.23.

Signature  _____________________________       Date  _____________

Printed Name  _____________________________________________________________

Commissioner Kathy Schwartz

Chair, NCPHD Board of Health

PAYROLL A/P



 
 

2021 BOH MEETING DATES 
(Changes to Agenda & Material for Packets Due Dates) 

 

 

MONTH DAY DATE 
AGENDA Items 

Due 
PACKET Materials 

Due 

JANUARY TUESDAY 12TH 
Thursday, December 
31st., by 3:00 p.m. 

Thursday, January 7th 
by 3:00 p.m. 

FEBRUARY TUESDAY 9TH 
Thursday, January 
28th by 3:00 p.m. 

Thursday, February 4th 
by 3:00 p.m. 

MARCH TUESDAY 9TH 
Thursday, February 
25th by 3:00 p.m. 

Thursday, March 4th by 
3:00 p.m. 

APRIL TUESDAY 13TH 
Thursday, April 1st by 
3:00 p.m. 

Thursday, April 8th by 
3:00 p.m. 

MAY TUESDAY 11TH 
Thursday, April 29th 
by 3:00 p.m. 

Thursday, May 6th by 
3:00 p.m. 

JUNE TUESDAY 8TH 
Thursday, May 27th, 
by 3:00 p.m. 

Thursday, June 3rd by 
3:00 p.m. 

JULY TUESDAY 13TH 
Thursday, July 1st by 
3:00 p.m. 

Thursday, July 8th by 
3:00 p.m. 

AUGUST TUESDAY 10TH 
Thursday, July 29th by 
3:00 p.m. 

Thursday, August 5th 
by 3:00 p.m. 

SEPTEMBER TUESDAY 14TH 
Thursday| September 
2nd by 3:00 p.m. 

Thursday, September 
9th by 3:00 p.m. 

OCTOBER TUESDAY 12TH 
Thursday, September 
30th by 3:00 p.m. 

Thursday, October 7th 
by 3:00 p.m. 

NOVEMBER TUESDAY 9TH 
Thursday, October 
28th by 3:00 p.m. 

Thursday, November 
4th by 3:00 p.m. 

DECEMBER TUESDAY 14TH 
Thursday, December 
2nd by 3:00 p.m. 

Thursday|, December 
9th by 3:00 p.m. 

 



 
  

NORTH CENTRAL PUBLIC HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

“Caring For Our Communities” 
 

 
NCPHD 2021 Holiday Closures 

 
New Year’s Day – Friday, January 1, 2021 

Martin Luther King Day – Monday, January 18, 2021 

President’s Day – Monday, February 15, 2021 

Memorial Day – Monday, May 31, 2021 

Independence Day – (observed) Monday, July 5, 2021 

Labor Day – Monday, September 6, 2021 

Veteran’s Day – Thursday, November 11, 2021 

Thanksgiving Day – Thursday, November 25, 2021 

Day after Thanksgiving – Friday, November 26, 2021 

Christmas – (observed) Friday, December 24, 2021 



NCPHD Recap Report
7/1/20 to 12/31/20

  Account Number Budgeted YTD REV YTD EXP   Balance Pct
201  PUBLIC HEALTH FUND
201.00.1201  NON-DEPARTMENTAL REV 8,000.00 4,939.69 0.00 4,939.69 61.75

(Interest and SAIF Dividend)
201.23.7141  PUBLIC HEALTH REV 828,831.00 408,987.22 49.35
General Fund; Septic; Vital Records EXP 627,110.00 218,971.16 190,016.06 34.92

201.23.7142  WIC REV 164,370.00 75,682.65 46.04
Nutrition for Women & Children EXP 205,857.00 106,185.87 -30,503.22 51.58

201.23.7143  IMM. & NURSING SERVICE REV 36,193.00 16,886.93 46.66
Child & Adolescent Health EXP 53,573.00 19,190.81 -2,303.88 35.82

201.23.7144  REPROD HEALTH REV 267,510.00 103,181.60 38.57
Exams & Ed. for Reproducitve Health EXP 337,865.00 122,947.57 -19,765.97 36.39

201.23.7145  STATE SUPPORT REV 837,069.00 624,927.87 74.66 COVID OHA funding

Exams, treat. & invest. for Com. Disease EXP 1,019,697.00 421,486.01 203,441.86 41.33

201.23.7146  ENVIRON. HEALTH REV 113,000.00 143,255.48 126.77 Maj. of rev. in Jan.

Facility inspections & Education EXP 163,410.00 71,414.84 71,840.64 43.70

201.23.7148  PERINATAL HEALTH REV 124,900.00 56,226.26 45.02
Home visiting program EXP 131,287.00 41,899.02 14,327.24 31.91 Supports other prog.

201.23.7149  PH EMERGENCY PREPAREREV 265,139.00 70,752.26 26.68
Emergency preparedness EXP 279,235.00 112,267.05 -41,514.79 40.21 COVID OHA funding

201.23.7151  PH MODERNIZATION REV 336,719.00 152,990.61 45.44
Public Health Modernization EXP 346,936.00 107,814.12 45,176.49 31.08

201.23.7152  HEALTH PROMOTION REV 174,810.00 126,590.83 72.42 CCO Grants: QIM,

Grants promoting health EXP 142,237.00 57,167.89 69,422.94 40.19 Mejour Juntos; LCAC

201.23.7153  PH PRACTICE - IMM SERV REV 18,346.00 21,685.60 118.20
Vaccine inventory; monitoring vaccinationsEXP 27,798.00 11,134.02 10,551.58 40.05 COVID Flu

201.23.7154  CACOON & SYSTEMS OF CREV 55,958.00 19,927.52 35.61
Home visiting program EXP 48,246.00 17,775.47 2,152.05 36.84 local match

201.23.7155  TOBACCO PREV & ED REV 208,980.00 48,807.56 23.36
Prevention of tobacco use EXP 208,980.00 44,801.96 4,005.60 21.44

201.23.7156  WATER REV 50,621.00 25,312.00 50.00
Monitoring of public water systems EXP 56,627.00 28,484.17 -3,172.17 50.30

3 172 17201.23.7158  BABIES FIRST REV 215,662.00 44,259.42 20.52
Home visiting program EXP 278,731.00 125,272.04 -81,012.62 44.94 TCM local match

201.23.7159  OREGON MOTHERS CAREREV 4,744.00 2,548.00 53.71
OHP application assistance EXP 17,706.00 7,940.11 -5,392.11 44.84 Supported by Med. Match

201.23.7500  PASS THROUGH REV 12,000.00 6,000.00 50.00
DEQ fees EXP 12,000.00 5,100.00 900.00 42.50

201.23.7999  NON-DEPARTMENTAL REV 0.00 0.00 0.00
(Conting. Unapprop. & Reserves) EXP 229,752.00 0.00 0.00

PUBLIC HEALTH FUND REV 3,599,509.00 1,952,961.50 54.26
EXP 4,187,047.00 1,519,852.11 36.30

433,109.39 Diff. btw total rev. & total exp.

Co. GF to local match 
& program support

S:\2. Admin\Fiscal\2020 - 21\Reports\BOH\1-12-21\9-30-20 fiscal report



1/5/2021 Nov Covid Funding Amts BOH

Funding Stream Amount Budget Award Period

PE 01‐04 OHA State $117,594 Personal Services & Admin 1/21/20 ‐ 12/30/21

201.23.7145.412.656

SAIF Grant 18,082.21 3/2/20 ‐ 7/2/20 

201.23.7145.412.710

CARES Relief Fund Round 1 87,602 PS ‐ 3/1/20 ‐ 5/15/20 Emp. Dedicated to COVID‐19

County Application 22,100 PPE 

$109,702 $6,323 Sherman Co amt 

201.23.7145.414.365 & 323 $96,538 rcvd fr Wasco Co

CARES Relief Fund Round 2 $93,661 PS 5/16/20 ‐ 6/30/20

County Application $20,152 MS ‐ Medical Sup,  & Isolation/quaratine expenses

201.23.7145.414.365 & 323 $113,813 $6,560 Sherman Co amt 

$100,155 Wasco Co

Col Gorge Health Council $200,000

201.23.7145.412.705

PE 12 ‐ 02 OHA COVID 19 Response (Fed) $119,757 (Incident Command Team) 3/21/20 ‐ 3/15/21

201.23.7149.413.905

Pacific Source CCO $25,000 No Award Period

201.23.7145.412.693

Grant County Health Dept. $25,000 Staff ask 2 questions No Award Period

Community Counseling Solutions

PE 01‐05 COVID‐19 Local Active Mon. (Fed) $253,700 1) Base Amount 6/2020 ‐ 12/30/2021

$204,249 2) Inv Fee for Service March ‐ July
$60,451 2) Inv Fee for Service  August
$61,729 3) Isol. & quar. Costs (addtl) July ‐ August

2) Fee for serv (inv. $104,933.36) September

$11,346 3) Isol. & quar. Costs (inv. $11,346) September

$288 3) Isol. & quar. Costs (inv. $288.21) October

$209 3) Isol. & quar. Costs (inv. $209.11) November

591,972

PE 01‐06 COVID‐19 Reg. Active Mon. (Fed.) $94,657 Regional Collaborative 6/2020 ‐ 12/30/21

201.23.7145.413.907

PE 43‐06 CARES Flu $50,417 6/6/20 ‐ 6/30/21

PE 01‐07 COVID Epi and Lab Capacity $391,568 12/30/20 ‐ 3/31/21

Covid Funding Total $1,857,562

$241,597 Reimb

Covid Expenditures 3/1/20 ‐ 11/30/20 $511,325 March 2021

YTD PS $760,478 $168,011 6/30/2021

YTD MS $214,793 $686,628.69 12/30/2021

Total $975,271 $250,000 No end date

Balance $882,291 $1,857,562

201.23.7145.413.906

Amounts by End Date

S:\2. Admin\Fiscal\2020 ‐ 21\Reports\BOH\Covid Funding Amounts through 12‐31‐20



2020-21 General & Auto 
Liability Coverage



CIS TRUST GENERAL AND AUTO LIABILITY COVERAGE AGREEMENT 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SECTION            PAGE 

1. DEFINITIONS          1 

2.  COVERAGES          4 

3. DEDUCTIBLES                     6 

4.  LIMITS OF LIABILITY                    7 

5.  EXCLUSIONS                     8 

6.  CONDITIONS          13 

7.  ETHICS LEGAL EXPENSE COVERAGE       15 

8. FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY LAW       16 

9.  LIMITED MEDICAL PROVISIONS AVAILABLE FOR CERTAIN AUTOS   16 

10.  UNINSURED/UNDERINSURED MOTORIST COVERAGE     16 

11.  LIMITED POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE      23 

12.  CYBER SECURITY EXPENSE COVERAGE      24‐33 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 1 of 33 

 

 
 

CIS TRUST 
GENERAL AND AUTO LIABILITY COVERAGE AGREEMENT 

 
 
 
 
This is an agreement between the Trust, as defined herein, and the named member identified in the 
General & Auto Liability Coverage Declarations as “Named Member” for “Public Entity Liability Coverage” 
for the applicable coverage period.  Various provisions of this agreement restrict coverage.  Read the 
entire coverage agreement carefully to determine rights, duties, and what is and what is not covered.  
Words or phrases that appear in bold-faced type have special meaning and are defined in Sections 1, 
10B, 11B, and 12C. 
 
 
1. DEFINITIONS 
 

A. "Administration" means: 
 

(1) Giving counsel to employees with respect to the employee benefit programs; 
 
(2) Interpreting the employee benefit programs; 
 
(3) Handling records in connection with employee benefit programs; 

 
(4) Effecting enrollment, termination or cancellation of employees under the employee 

benefits programs; 
 

 provided all such acts are authorized by the named member. 
 

B. “Airport” means any area of land or water that is intended for the landing and takeoff of 
aircraft, and includes its buildings and related facilities, if any. 

 
C. "Bodily Injury" means bodily injury, sickness or disease sustained by a person including 

death resulting from any of these. 
 
D. “Claim” means any notice or demand to the named member by or on behalf of a party 

seeking damages that reasonably communicates to the named member the party’s intent 
to seek money damages from the member. 

 
E. "Covered Auto" means any vehicle designed for land transportation, whether or not 

licensed for highway use, and owned or operated by the member. 
 
F. "Damages" means all sums recoverable by law from any liability covered under this 

coverage agreement, including punitive damages if awarded, but not including any sums 
awarded for plaintiff's attorney fees, or expert fees, under any statute including but not 
limited to, 42 U.S. Code, 1988, in any case in which monetary damages are not sought or 
not awarded. Damages do not include: 

 
(1) Costs necessary to comply with injunctions or declaratory relief.   

 
(2) Sums recoverable for breach of contract; express or implied. 

 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 2 of 33 

 

(3) Sums awarded as compensation due or accruing to the benefit of the employee 
while still employed by the named member. 

(4) Sums sought or awarded for claims of unjust enrichment, money had and received 
or replevin. 

 
(5) Sums due to taxing authorities, insurance programs, or retirement plans as a result 

of an award of damages or claim settlement. 
 

(6) Fines or penalties assessed to the Member for non-payment of taxes, insurance 
contributions or retirement plan contributions. 

 
G. "Employee benefit programs" shall mean group life insurance, group health insurance, 

profit sharing plans, pension plan, employee stock subscription plans, workers' 
compensation, unemployment insurance, social security, disability benefits insurance and 
travel, savings or vacation plans. 

 
H. “Fungus or fungi” includes but is not limited to any form or type of mold, mushroom or 

mildew. 
 
I. "Hazardous properties” means radioactive, toxic or explosive properties. 
 
J. “Hospital” or “nursing home” means any facility with an organized medical staff,  with 

permanent facilities that include inpatient beds and with medical services, including 
physician services and continuous nursing services under the supervision of registered 
nurses, to provide diagnosis and medical or surgical treatment including but not limited to 
providing treatment for 1) acutely ill patients and accident victims, 2) mentally ill patients or 
3) patients in special inpatient care facilities. However, in-patient care facilities incidental 
to correctional facilities shall not be considered a   hospital or nursing home. 

 
K. “Member" means the entity named on the declarations page and its officers, employees 

and agents including volunteers, authorized to act on behalf of the named member, all 
acting within the scope of their employment or duties whether arising out of a governmental 
or proprietary function.  The term member shall also include additional members to the 
extent coverage is afforded under the definition of additional member.  

 
(1) “Named member” means the entity named as such on the Declarations page of 

the coverage agreement, 
 
(2) "Additional member" means any party whom a public body covered under this 

coverage agreement has agreed to hold harmless, indemnify or defend pursuant to 
a contract or other agreement lawfully entered into by such public body.  However, 
in no event shall coverage under this coverage agreement extend to such party for 
any claim arising out of an occurrence after the expiration of this coverage 
agreement or the expiration of the contract or agreement entered into by the public 
body, whichever shall occur first.  Further, in no event shall coverage under this 
coverage agreement extend to such party for any claim, however or whenever 
asserted, arising out of such party's sole negligence.  Except as specified in this 
paragraph, such party shall have no rights under the Trust Agreement, Bylaws or 
Rules of the Trust.  The term "additional insured" if used on a certificate of 
coverage, shall be understood to mean the same as additional member. 

 
L. “Nuclear Facility” means: 

 
(1) Any nuclear reactor; 
 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 3 of 33 

 

(2) Any equipment or device designed or used for: 
 

a. separating the isotopes of uranium or plutonium, 
 

b. processing or utilizing spent fuel, or  
 

c. handling, processing, or packaging nuclear waste; 
 

(3) any equipment or device used for the processing, fabricating or alloying of special 
nuclear material if at any time the total amount of such material in the custody of 
the member at the premises where such equipment or device is located consists 
of or contains more than 25 grams of plutonium or uranium 233 or any combination 
thereof, or more than 250 grams of uranium 235; 

 
(4) any structure, basin, excavation, premises or place prepared or used for the storage 

or disposal of nuclear waste;  
 

 and includes the site on which any of the foregoing is located, all operations conducted on 
such site and all premises used for such operations. 

 
M. “Nuclear material” means source material, special nuclear material or by-product 

material. 
 
N. “Nuclear reactor” means any apparatus designed or used to sustain nuclear fission in a 

self-supporting chain reaction or to contain a critical mass of fissionable material. 
         

     O.         “Nuclear waste” means any waste material: 
 

(1) containing by-product material other than the tailings or wastes produced by the 
extraction or concentration of uranium or thorium from any ore process primarily for 
its source material content, and   

 
(2) resulting from the operation by any person or organization of any nuclear facility 

included under the first two paragraphs of the definition of nuclear facility. 
  

 P.  “Nursing home” see Hospital. 
 

Q. “Occurrence” means: 
 

(1) an incident, event, act, error or omission which occurs during the coverage period: 
or 

 

(2) a series of related incidents, events, acts, errors or omissions; or a continuous or 
repeated exposure to substantially the same general conditions, which occur during 
the coverage period. If the occurrence begins in one coverage period and ends in 
another, the occurrence shall be deemed to have taken place during the last such 
coverage period.  Such incidents, events, acts, errors or omissions, or continuous 
or repeated exposures to substantially the same conditions shall be deemed to be 
a single occurrence for purposes of determining the “per occurrence” limit of 
liability and deductible, if any.  Only the coverage and limits in effect for the last 
coverage period shall apply and only one “per occurrence” limit shall be available 
for each such multi-period occurrence regardless of the number of coverages 
under this coverage agreement which may apply to such occurrence. 

 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 4 of 33 

 

R. “Personal Injury” means false arrest, detention, imprisonment, malicious prosecution, 
libel, slander, or publication or utterance in violation of the individual’s right of privacy, 
wrongful entry or eviction, or invasion of the right of private occupancy. 

S. "Pollutants," as used in exclusion Section 4.I., means any solid, liquid, gaseous, or thermal 
irritant or contaminant, including smoke, vapor, soot, fumes, acids, alkali, and chemicals, 
bacteria, organisms, and pathogens.  However, pollutants does not include sewage which 
through the negligence of the member escapes the confines of a municipal sewage 
treatment system owned or operated by the member. 

 
T. "Property Damage" means injury to or destruction of tangible property.  
 
U.       “Source material,” “special nuclear material,” or “by-product material” have    the 

meanings given them in the Atomic Energy Act of 1954 or in any law amendatory thereof. 
 

V. “Spent fuel” means any fuel element or fuel component, solid or liquid, which has been 
used or exposed to radiation in a nuclear reactor. 

 
W. “Spore(s)” include any reproductive body produced or arising out of any fungus or fungi. 
 
X. “Trust Agreement” means the CITY COUNTY INSURANCE SERVICES DECLARATION 

AND AGREEMENT OF TRUST. 
 

 Y. “Trust” means the CIS or CIS Trust, as described in the Trust Agreement. 
 
Z. "Waste" as used in exclusion Section 4.I., includes, but is not limited to, materials to be 

recycled, reconditioned, or reclaimed. 
 
 
2. COVERAGES 

 
In accordance with and subject to the General & Auto Liability Coverage Declarations applicable 
to the named member to which this Coverage Agreement applies; the City County Insurance 
Services Declaration and Agreement of Trust (herein "Trust Agreement"); the Bylaws and Rules 
of the Trust; and  the terms, conditions, and limitations of this Coverage Agreement and in 
consideration of the contribution for which this coverage agreement is written, the Trust will pay 
on behalf of the member all damages arising out of an occurrence, not to exceed the Limits of 
Liability as set further described in Section 4. of this Coverage Agreement because of: 

 
Coverage A: Liability arising under Oregon Revised Statutes 30.260 to 30.300; asserted 

pursuant to ORS 30.260 to 30.300.  
 
Coverage B: Liability arising under 42 U.S. Code 1983; 42 U.S. Code 2000e, et seq. (Title 

VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964); 29 U.S. Code 621, et seq. (Age 
Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967); The Americans with Disabilities 
Act; The Civil Rights Act of 1991; 42 U.S. Code 1981; 42 U.S. Code 3601, 
et seq. (The Fair Housing Act); ORS Chapter 659; ORS Chapter 659A; ORS 
652.355; ORS 654.062; 29 U.S. Code Sec. 261, et seq. (Family and Medical 
Leave Act); or any law amendatory thereof.  

 
Coverage C: Tort liability for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage for 

which the member is legally liable under the laws of any jurisdiction other 
than the State of Oregon and other than any United States Federal 
jurisdiction to which this coverage agreement applies.  



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 5 of 33 

 

Coverage D: Tort liability for the negligence of others assumed by the named member 
under contract, except as limited in the definition of the term "member" in 
Section 1. of this Coverage Agreement. 

 
Coverage E: Liability to a named member’s employee, prospective employee, former 

employee or the beneficiaries or legal representatives thereof, arising out 
of, and asserted pursuant to, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, and caused by an 
occurrence consisting of or based upon the member’s negligent errors or 
omissions in the administration of the named member’s employee 
benefits program.  
 

Coverage F: Uninsured/Underinsured Motorists Coverage as set forth in Section 10. of 
this coverage agreement, pursuant to ORS 278.215.  The Limits of Liability 
of such coverage with respect to a member shall the Per Occurrence Limit 
for General and Auto Liability Coverage as set forth in the General and Auto 
Liability Declarations.  The limits of liability of such coverage with respect to 
a permissive user of a covered auto, other than a member, shall be the 
amounts set forth in ORS 806.070 that is the minimum liability limits of the 
Financial Responsibility Law as provided in the Oregon Vehicle Code and 
as set forth in Section 8. of this coverage agreement.  

    
In accordance with and subject to the Declarations, the Trust Agreement, Bylaws and Rules of 
the Trust, and in consideration of the contribution for which this Coverage Agreement is written, 
and independent of Coverages A - F above, the Trust will pay: 

  
Coverage G: Legal expenses reasonably incurred by a public official of the named 

member arising out of defense of a complaint alleging violation of ORS 
244.040 or 244.120 to 244.135, subject to the terms and conditions set forth 
in Section 7. ETHICS LEGAL EXPENSE COVERAGE of this coverage 
agreement.   

 
Coverage H: The actual or alleged accidental discharge, dispersal, release or escape of 

pollutants, subject to the terms, conditions, and limitations set forth in this 
Coverage Agreement, specifically including, without limitation, Section 11. 
LIMITED POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE. 

 
Coverage I: Unless such expenses or damages are otherwise covered by this Coverage 

Agreement, CYBER SECURITY EXPENSE COVERAGE as set forth in 
Section 12. 

 
Coverage J:   (Oregon Pay Equity Act) The Trust will reimburse the named members for 

reasonable legal expenses and damages connected with Oregon Pay 
Equity Act claims filed with the Bureau of Labor and Industries (BOLI) under 
ORS 659A.820 or in the Oregon Circuit Court under ORS 659A.885. 
Coverage does not apply to wages or back pay, or civil actions filed under 
ORS 652.230.  The most the Trust will pay to or on behalf of a named 
member for any one or more claims in a single year is $50,000.  The most 
the Trust will pay for all named members in a single year is 
$500,000.  Each named member will have a $10,000 deductible per claim, 
or the deductible on the Declaration page whichever is higher.  
 

The Trust shall have the right and duty to defend, with legal counsel selected by the Trust, any 
claim or suit against the member seeking damages, even if any of the allegations of the suit are 
groundless, false or fraudulent, and may make such investigation and settlement of any claim or 
suit as it deems expedient.  The duty to defend any claim or suit shall terminate, except as provided 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 6 of 33 

 

hereafter, when such claim or suit ceases to seek damages against the member.  Provided, 
however, that the duty to defend any claim or suit shall not terminate so long as the claim or suit 
includes an allegation of breach of an implied contract arising out of an employment relationship 
with the named member.  

 
 
3. DEDUCTIBLES   

 
A. CONDITIONAL DEDUCTIBLE:  Employment Practices 

 
The named member is responsible for the first $15,000 of any settlement, or judgment, or 
legal defense costs paid by the Trust on behalf of the member with respect to any claims 
arising out of the termination or suspension of employment or suspension without pay and 
benefits of any employee of the named member. However, this deductible shall be waived 
if the member has consulted with a Pre-Loss attorney employed by the Trust, before such 
termination or suspension of employment, and has followed all reasonable advice provided 
to the member by the Trust’s Pre-Loss attorney with respect to such termination or 
suspension of employment. The $15,000 deductible, or the applicable portion thereof 
payable by the named member, will be charged to the named member by the Trust when 
the first $15,000 of any settlement, judgment or legal defense cost is paid after settlement 
of the claim or payment of the judgment by the Trust. This conditional deductible provision 
does not apply to claims of "constructive discharge." If the Employment Practices 
deductible is charged to the same named member more than one time in its five most 
recent coverage years, the amount of the deductible charged to that named member will 
be as follows, and will be payable to the Trust as provided above: 
Second instance:  $30,000 
Third instance:  $45,000 
Each instance thereafter: $60,000. 

 
B. AGGREGATE / RETROSPECTIVE DEDUCTIBLE 

 
If an Aggregate/Retrospective Deductible amount is shown on the Liability Coverage 
Declarations page, payments made on behalf of the member by the Trust for the 
settlement of liability claims which are determined to have occurred during the coverage 
period shown on the declarations page, shall be subject to reimbursement by the named 
member to the Trust. The Aggregate/Retrospective Deductible limit shown is the 
maximum amount to be reimbursed to the Trust by the Member under this deductible 
agreement for the coverage period stated on the declarations page. 
 
The amounts to be reimbursed to the Trust under this agreement shall be calculated using 
the total of: 

 
(1) All indemnity payments made on the member's behalf, and 

 
(2) All allocated loss adjusting expenses, including attorney's fees, incurred in the 

settlement of such liability claims. 
 
C.        PER OCCURRENCE DEDUCTIBLE 

 
If a “per occurrence deductible” is shown on the Declarations page or by endorsement to 
this Coverage Agreement as being applicable to the covered member, such deductible 
amount shall be owed by the named member to CIS upon payment by CIS on the 
member’s behalf of any amount paid by CIS in excess of the deductible pursuant to the 
terms of this Coverage Agreement. If such payment by CIS is less than the deductible 
amount, the n a m e d  member shall reimburse CIS for the full amount paid on its 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 7 of 33 

 

behalf. Such deductible reimbursements are due and payable within 30 days of receipt by 
the named member of an invoice from CIS. 

 
D.   EMPLOYMENT CLAIM PARTICIPATION DEDUCTIBLE 

 
The named member pays 10% of any employment practices claim, up to a maximum of 
$10,000.  At the end of the coverage period after closing an employment practices claim 
CIS will invoice the named member for 10% of expenses, settlement, and judgment paid 
by the Trust to resolve the claim.  Any per-occurrence, retrospective or aggregate 
deductible paid on the claim will be deducted from the total amount of the claim prior to the 
calculation of the 10% participation deductible.  Any applicable Pre-Loss Deductible will be 
assessed in addition to the 10% participation deductible. 

 
E.   OTHER DEDUCTIBLES 

 
Any other deductible provision as provided in a coverage part or endorsement shall 
apply as specified. 

 
F. MEDICAL CARE JAIL DEDUCTIBLE 
 

A per-occurrence deductible of $10,000 is applied to claims under the following conditions: 
 
(1) Inmates are held in custody exceeding eight (8) hours; and  

 
(2) Medical care was required; and  

 
(3) The member did not have medical care readily available in the facility by a employed 

or contracted qualified doctor or nurse. 
 
 
4.   LIMITS OF LIABILITY 
 

A. The “Per Occurrence Limit” listed in the Coverage Declarations, subject to the provisions 
of this LIMITS OF LIABILITY section, is the most the Trust will pay as damages on behalf 
of the member with respect to a single occurrence regardless of the number of: 

 

(1) Coverages provided in Section 2. of this Coverage Agreement that apply or might 
apply to the occurrence; 

 
(2) Claims asserted; 

 
(3) Persons or organizations making claims arising out of or in connection with that 

occurrence; or 
 

(4) Additional or supplemental coverages provided under this Coverage Agreement. 

B. The “Annual Aggregate” listed on the Declarations Page is the most the Trust will pay as 
damages on behalf of the named member with respect to all occurrences that occur 
during the coverage period specified in the Coverage Declarations, regardless of the 
number of: 

(1) Coverages provided in Section 2. of this Coverage Agreement that apply or might 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 8 of 33 

 

apply to the occurrences; 
 

(2) Claims asserted; 
 

(5) Persons or organizations making claims arising out of or in connection with the 
occurrences; or 

 
(6) Additional or supplemental coverages provided under this Coverage Agreement. 

 
C.   Cost of Defense. The Trust’s obligation to pay the cost of defending claims or suits to 

which the Coverage Agreement applies in addition to, and does not erode, the applicable 
limits of liability shown in the Coverage Declarations. 

 
D.   The foregoing sections A, B, and C of LIMITS OF LIABILITY do not apply to Coverage I, 

Cyber Security Expense Coverage, which has its own “Limit of Liability” subsection limiting 
coverage both on a “per member” basis and in the aggregate for that coverage part. 

 
 

5. EXCLUSIONS 
 

The coverage agreement does not apply: 
 
A. To any liability arising out of: 

(1)  ownership, maintenance, operation, use, security, loading or unloading of: 
 

a. any aircraft owned, or operated by, or rented, or loaned to any member; or 
 

b. any other aircraft operated by any person in the course of their employment 
by the named member; or 

 
c. any non-owned aircraft. 

 
(2)  any operational, security, or maintenance activities associated in any way with the 

operation of an airport, including liability arising out of the ownership, maintenance, 
or use of covered autos used to service the aircraft and/or service or maintain 
airport runways, taxiways, and similar airport facilities while such vehicles are on 
the airport premises.    

  
          However, this exclusion does not apply to named member boards or commissions, 

including advisory boards, acting within the scope of their duties as such.  The maximum 
limit of liability available under this exception, however, shall be limited to either the limit of 
liability provided under Coverage A of this coverage agreement or the limit of primary 
liability coverage maintained on behalf of the member for the ownership and operation of 
the airport, whichever  is less. 

 
B. To any occurrence arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use of watercraft if other 

liability coverage is in effect and provides coverage for the member for liability arising out 
of the occurrence. 
  

C. To injury or damage to or destruction of any property owned by the named member or any 
of its departments, agencies, boards or commissions. 

 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 9 of 33 

 

D. To any obligation for which named member, or any carrier as its insurer, may be held liable 
under any workers' compensation, unemployment or disability benefits law, or other similar 
law, including the Jones Act, general maritime law, the Federal Employers Liability Act, 
Federal Employee Compensation Act, the Defense Base Act, or the US Longshoremen 
and Harbor Workers’ Compensation Act. 

 
E. To bodily injury to any employee of the named member, including any volunteer or 

inmate for whom the named member has elected to provide Workers' Compensation 
coverage under ORS 656.031 or ORS 656.041, arising out of and in the course of the 
employee's, volunteer's, or inmate's employment by the named member. 

 
F. To any liability arising out of or in any way connected with the operation of the principles of 

eminent domain, condemnation proceedings, or inverse condemnation, by whatever called, 
whether such liability accrues directly against the member or by virtue of any agreement 
entered into, by or on behalf of the named member.  This includes but is not limited to 
takings and partial takings of private property resulting from the application of land use, 
zoning, building, subdivision or similar ordinance or regulation. This coverage agreement 
also does not apply to any claim or action based on, or asserted pursuant to, ORS 197.352 
(“Measure 37 Claims”) for compensation or damages due to land use regulation.  

 
G. To liability at any hospital or nursing home owned or operated by the named member, 

or to any such liability assumed by the named member under contract, arising out of or in 
connection with the care, treatment, rendering of medical professional  services or 
provision of any associated products or devices to any person admitted on an inpatient or 
outpatient basis or to any person entering or brought to such hospital or nursing home 
with the intention that care, treatment, medical professional services or associated products 
and devices be provided. 

 
H. To any claim against a Hospital Financing Authority created pursuant to ORS 441.525 to 

441.596 arising out of the issuance of, use of proceeds from, repayment or default on 
financial instruments, bonds or revenue bonds. 

 
I. To any pollution liability claims for bodily injury, personal injury, property damage, or 

cost, loss or damage arising out of contamination by pollutants, including expense 
incurred or demanded for cleaning, remediating or detoxifying contamination except as 
otherwise insured by Section 11., limited pollution liability coverage. 
This exclusion does not apply to bodily injury or property damage arising out of heat, 
smoke or fumes from a hostile fire. As used in the exclusion, a hostile fire means one which 
becomes uncontrollable or breaks out from where it was intended to be. 

  
Exclusion I. does not apply to: 

 
(1) Fuel, lubricants, fluids or exhaust gases that have leaked from a covered auto if 

they are needed for or result from normal electrical hydraulic or mechanical function 
of an auto and leak from the part of the auto designed by its manufacturer to hold 
or dispose of them. 

 
(2) Damages caused by collision, overturn, or upset of a covered auto. 

 
(3) Firefighting activities, including training burns, intentional demolition or burns for 

purpose of limiting a fire, or the discharge of pollutants for the purpose of 
controlling a fire. 

 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 10 of 33 

 

(4) Bodily injury or property damage caused by the named member's fire 
department or hazardous response team responding to a contamination caused by 
a third party unrelated to the named member. 

 
(5) Liability otherwise covered by this agreement for property damage arising out of 

the member's use of pesticides, herbicides, or fungicides, provided each of the 
following conditions are met: 

 
a. The named member indicated on the application that pesticides, 

herbicides, or fungicides are used. 
 
b. The use meets all standards of any statute, ordinance, regulation, or license 

requirement of any federal, state, or local government pertaining to such 
use. 

 
The liability of the Trust arising from any occurrence under this exception, 
exclusion I(5), shall not exceed $50,000. 
 

J. To any liability arising directly or indirectly out of, resulting from, caused by or contributed 
to by: 

 
(1) any fungus, fungi, or spore(s); 
 
(2) any solid, liquid, vapor, or gas produced by or arising out of any fungus, fungi, or 

spore(s); 
 

(3) any material, product, building component, or building structure that contains 
harbors, nurtures or acts as a medium for any fungus, fungi, or spore(s); 

 
(4) any intrusion, leakage, or accumulation of water or any other liquid that contains, 

harbors, nurtures or acts as a medium for fungus, fungi, or spore(s); 
 

(5) the actual or threatened abatement, mitigation, removal or disposal of fungus, 
fungi, or spore(s) or any material, product, building component, or building 
structure that contains, harbors, nurtures or acts as a medium for any fungus, 
fungi, or spore(s); 

(6) any supervision, instruction, recommendations, warnings or advice given or which 
should have been given in connection with subparagraphs (1), (2), (3), (4), or (5) 
above; or  
 

(7) any obligation of the member to indemnify any party in connection with 
subparagraphs (1), (2), (3), (4), (5), or (6) above. 

 
             Exclusion J. does not apply to: 
 

a. the member’s liability for removal of or damage caused by sewage which, 
through the negligence of the member, escapes the confines of a municipal 
sewage treatment system owned or operated by the named member, or 

 
b. The member’s liability for negligent building inspection or plan review or 

approval.   
 

K. To any liability or expense arising from the handling, processing, manufacture, sale, 
distribution, storage or use of asbestos, asbestos dust, asbestos fibers, asbestos products, 
and/or products containing asbestos. 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 11 of 33 

 

 
L. To any liability or expense arising directly or indirectly from: 
 

(1) the toxic pathological properties of lead, lead compounds or lead contained   in any 
materials; or 

 
(2) the actual or threatened abatement, mitigation, removal or disposal of lead, lead 

compounds or materials containing lead; or 
 

(3) any supervision, instructions, recommendations, warnings or advice given or which 
should have been given in connection with parts (1) or (2) above; or 

 
(4) any obligation of the member to indemnify any party in connection with 

subparagraphs (1), (2), or (3) above. 
   

M. To any liability or expense arising out of any nuclear incident, accident, loss, occurrence, 
claim made or loss discovered; or as the result of the ownership, management, 
manufacture, design, service, operation, storage, use, existence, handling, processing, 
sale, distribution, responsibility for, disposal of, or entrustment to others of nuclear 
materials.  For purposes of this exclusion, the term "Entrustment to Others" shall include, 
but not be limited to, involvement of parties other than the member pursuant to contracts, 
licenses, leases, permits, franchises and consignments.  

 
N.       To any liability: 
 

(1) Of any member under this coverage agreement who is an insured under a nuclear 
energy liability insurance policy issued by Nuclear Energy Liability Insurance 
Association, Nuclear Insurance Association of Canada or any of their successors, 
or would be an insured under any such policy but for its termination upon exhaustion 
of its limits of liability; or 

 
(2) Resulting from the hazardous properties of nuclear material and with respect to 

which: 
a. any person or organization is required to maintain financial protection 

pursuant to the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, or any law amendatory thereof, 
or 

b. The member is, or had this coverage agreement not been issued, would be 
entitled to indemnity from the United States of America, or any agency 
thereof, with any person or organization. 

 
(3) Resulting from the hazardous properties of nuclear material, if: 

 
a. the nuclear material: 

 
i. is at any nuclear facility owned by, or operated by or on behalf of any 

member; or 
 

ii. has been discharged or disposed therefrom; 
 

b. the nuclear material is contained in spent fuel or nuclear waste at any 
time possessed, handled, used, processed, stored, transported or disposed 
of by or on behalf of any member; or 

 
c. the liability, including liability resulting from all forms of radioactive        

contamination of property, arising out of the furnishing by a member of 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 12 of 33 

 

services, materials, parts, or equipment in connection with the planning, 
construction, maintenance, operation or use of any nuclear facility, but if 
such facility is located within the United States of America, or its territories 
or possessions, or Canada, then subparagraph c. applies only to damage 
to property, including damage resulting from all forms of radioactive 
contamination of property, to or at such nuclear facility and any property 
there at. 

 
O.       To any liability, however caused, arising, directly or indirectly, out of: 
 

(1) war, including undeclared or civil war; or 
 
(2) warlike action by a military force, including action in hindering or defending against 

an actual or expected attack, by any government, sovereign or other authority using 
military personnel or other agents; or 

(3) insurrection, rebellion, revolution, usurped power, or action taken by governmental 
authority in hindering or defending against any of these. 

 
P. To liability arising out of or connected with the administration of an employee benefits 

program, except to the extent such coverage is provided under Coverage E, Employee 
Benefits Liability. 

 
Q. With respect to Coverage E, Employee Benefits Liability, only this coverage does not apply 

to any dishonest, fraudulent, criminal or malicious act, libel, slander, discriminations or 
humiliation; or to bodily injury to any person, or to property damage, including the loss 
of use thereof.  

 
R. Any claim for failure of performance of contract by any Insurer, including failure of any 

employee benefit program. 
 
S. Any claim based upon the member's failure to comply with any law concerning Workers' 

Compensation, Unemployment Insurance, Social Security or Disability Benefits. 
 
T. Any claim based upon (1) failure of stock or bond to perform as represented by a member, 

(2) advice given by a member to an employee to participate or not to participate in stock 
subscription plan, (3) the investment or failure to invest, or misappropriation of funds. 

 
U. Any claim based upon the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, Public Law 

93-406, commonly referred to as the Pension Reform Act of 1974 and amendments thereto, 
or similar provisions of any Federal, State or Local Statutory Law of Common Law. 

 
V. To any liability to a named member’s employee, prospective employee, former employee 

or the beneficiaries or legal representatives thereof, arising out of or connected to the 
member’s administration of PERS or legislatively imposed changes to PERS, including, but 
not limited to, any claim alleging negligence, breach of contract, breach of the duty of good 
faith and fair dealing, or liability arising under 42 USC Section 1983. 

 
W. To the member’s actual or alleged failure to comply with ORS 243.303 or any other state 

or federal law requiring the named member to make health care insurance coverage 
available to retired officers and employees, or their spouses or children. 

 
 X. To liability arising out of any operational, security, or maintenance activities associated with 

the operation of any railroads owned, leased or controlled by the named member.  For 
purposes of this exclusion of coverage, operation of a trolley, streetcar or similar urban 
transit vehicle is not considered to constitute a railroad. 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 13 of 33 

 

 
However, this exclusion does not apply to the activities of member advisory boards not 
directly involved in the operational decisions of the railroad.  It also does not apply to the 
Member’s liability arising from the operation or use of vehicles designed and licensed for 
use on public highways that would otherwise be included as covered autos. 

 
Y. To liability arising out the failure of any member to effect, adequately purchase or maintain 

any insurance, bond, self-insurance fund or employee benefit program. 
 

Z. To liability arising out of or attributable to: 
 

(1) the member gaining profit, advantage, or remuneration to which the member is not 
entitled; or 

 
(2) the willful violation of any federal, state, or local statute, ordinance, or regulation by 

the governing body of the named member or any officer, employee, or agent of the 
named member acting with the authority and consent of the named member. 

 
The actual or alleged conduct of a member shall not be imputed to any other member for 
the application of this exclusion.   

  
AA. To liability or claims arising out of or connected to any sums due to taxing authorities, non-

payment of taxes, non-payment of insurance, or non-payment of retirement plan 
contributions. 
 

BB. To any claim brought against the named member under any cause of action, state or 
federal, that is based upon the use or assistance of a canine to control the behavior of an 
inmate in a jail cell or use in a cell extraction. 

 
CC. Communicable Disease - Any liability, loss, damage, injury, cost, or expense of any kind 

whatsoever caused by, arising out of, related to, or resulting from, directly or indirectly, in 
whole or in any part: 

 
(1) Any pathogen, virus, bacteria, parasite, or other microorganism; or 

 
(2) Any action or inaction of any insured, or Party acting or failing to act on behalf of 

any insured, any action or order of a governmental representative, authority or 
agency undertaken to control, prevent, suppress, mitigate, test for, monitor, treat or 
remediate the actual, suspected, or anticipated presence, existence or transmission 
of any pathogen, virus, parasite, bacteria or other microorganism; 

 
that actually or allegedly induces or is capable of inducing symptoms, physical distress, 
mental anguish, illness, or disease. 
 
Limited Communicable Disease Coverage.  Notwithstanding this exclusion, the Trust will 
pay, up to a per member lifetime maximum of $100,000, and subject to a pool lifetime 
aggregate of $5,000,000, legal costs necessarily incurred in defense of the member in 
claims or lawsuits against the member alleging covered claims.  The Limited 
Communicable Disease Coverage is not stackable and cannot be used in conjunction with 
Section 11. LIMITED POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE. 
 

  
6. CONDITIONS 
 

A.     Duties of Member in the Event of a Claim or Occurrence.  



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 14 of 33 

 

 
(1) In the event of a claim, occurrence, suit, tort claim notice, or other communication 

or circumstance sufficient to reasonably put the member on notice of a covered 
claim or suit against the member, notice of such claim or suit shall be provided to 
Trust as soon as practicable. Such notice shall include the identity of the member, 
and also reasonably obtainable information as to the time, place, and 
circumstances of the occurrence, and the member shall immediately forward to 
the Trust every demand, notice, summons, or other process received by member. 

 
(2) The member shall do nothing to prejudice the rights of Trust with respect to any 

such claim or occurrence, and shall cooperate fully with Trust in the defense of 
such claim or occurrence, including attending hearings and trials and assisting in 
securing and providing evidence. The member shall not, except at its own cost, 
voluntarily make any payment, assume any liability or obligation. 

 
B. Action Against the Trust. 
 

As a condition precedent to action against the Trust, the member shall have fully complied 
with all the terms of this coverage agreement and the amount of the obligation shall have 
been finally determined either by judgment after actual trial or by written agreement 
between the member, the claimant and the Trust.  No person or organization shall have 
the right under this coverage agreement to join the Trust as a party to any action against 
the named member.  Bankruptcy or insolvency of the named member or of the covered 
estate shall not relieve the Trust of any of its obligations hereunder. 

 
C. Subrogation. 
 

In the event of any payment under this coverage agreement, the Trust shall be subrogated 
to all the member's rights to recovery thereof against any person or organization and the 
member shall execute and deliver instruments and papers and do whatever else is 
necessary to secure such rights.  The member shall do nothing to prejudice such rights. 

 
D. Changes. 
 

The terms of this coverage agreement shall not be waived or changed, except by an 
endorsement issued to form a part of this coverage agreement, signed by the Trust's 
authorized representative, and delivered to the named member. 

 
E. Cancellation. 
 

This coverage agreement may be canceled by the named member upon such notice as 
required by the Trust Bylaws, in which event the end of such notice period shall become 
the end of coverage period.  The Trust agrees to remain on the risk subject to the 
termination provisions of the Trust Bylaws.  Notice to the named member of any action 
taken pursuant to such provisions shall be sixty (60) days, except in the event of non-
payment of any contribution due and owing, in which case notice shall be ten (10) days.  
Notice shall be in writing to the named member at the last address known by the Trust for 
the named member. 

 
F. Non-Assignable. 
 

The interest of the member under this coverage agreement shall not be assignable. 
 

G. Coverage Period/Territory. 
 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 15 of 33 

 

This coverage agreement applies to occurrences during the coverage period which take 
place anywhere, provided that resulting claims or suits are asserted within the United 
States of America, its territories or possessions, or Canada.  Unless specifically stated 
otherwise, the time coverage becomes effective and terminates shall be understood to be 
12:01 AM of the date so indicated. 
 

H. Government Instrumentality. 
 

The issuance of this coverage shall not be deemed a waiver of any statutory immunities as 
to any member nor of any statutory limits on the monetary amount of liability applicable to 
any member were this coverage agreement not in effect.  The Trust expressly reserves 
any and all rights to deny liability by reason of such immunity and to assert any limitation 
provided by law as to amount of liability. 

 
I. Other Coverage. 
 

It is a condition of this coverage agreement that if, at the time of loss, there is other 
collectable insurance available to the member of any kind, this coverage shall become 
excess coverage and in no event contributing coverage and then only for the amount due 
the member under such forms of coverage.  In no event, however, shall the liability 
hereunder exceed the limit of liability set forth herein. 
 

 J. No Stacking of Coverage Limits. 
 

In the event an occurrence results in, or is alleged to have resulted in, injury or damages 
that continue in successive coverage years, only one “per occurrence” limit shall apply and 
there will be no “stacking” of coverage limits from more than one coverage year.   

 
 
7. ETHICS LEGAL EXPENSE COVERAGE 
 

A. The amount the Trust will pay shall be limited to $7,500 for any individual public official for 
all complaints arising in any one Fund Year. 

 
B. The amount the Trust will pay shall be limited to $15,000 for all public officials of any one 

named member for all complaints arising in any one Fund Year. 
 

C. The Trust shall have no obligation to pay for legal expenses under this section unless the 
public official notifies the Trust of a complaint within 30 days of first communication with 
the Oregon Governmental Standards and Practices Commission. 

 
D. The Trust shall have no obligation to pay for legal expenses under this section unless 

defense counsel has been selected by the Trust or, if selected by the public official, 
approved by the Trust.  Such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

 
E. The Trust shall have the right, but not the duty, to independently investigate any complaint 

alleging violation of ORS 244.040 or 244.120 to 244.135.  As a condition precedent to any 
right to payment under this section, the public official shall fully and completely cooperate 
with such investigation.  The costs, if any, of such investigation shall not reduce the 
payments otherwise payable under this section. 

 
F. Payments for legal expenses shall normally be made as such costs are incurred, upon 

receipt by the Trust of adequate documentation.  However, the Trust, in its sole discretion, 
shall have the right at any time to withhold payment until final resolution of a complaint.  In 
such a case, no payment shall be made unless the public official shall have prevailed. 

 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 16 of 33 

 

G. The Trust shall be subrogated, to the extent of any payments made under this section, to 
any amounts recoverable by the public official from the public body, other collectible 
insurance or pursuant to ORS 244.400. 

 
 

8. FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY LAW 
 

With respect to the ownership, operation, or use of covered autos, this coverage agreement is 
intended to satisfy the named member’s self-insurance requirements under the Oregon Financial 
Responsibility Law as set for as ORS 806.130(2), including coverage for persons using covered 
autos within the scope of permission granted to such person by an officer, employee, or agent of 
the named member with the authority to grant such permission. Provided, however, if such 
permissive user of a covered auto is not a member, this coverage shall apply only if there is no 
applicable insurance in force to comply with the Oregon Financial Responsibility Law (ORS 
806.010 to 806.300) as to that person’s use of the covered auto.  
 
 

9. LIMITED MEDICAL PROVISIONS AVAILABLE FOR CERTAIN AUTOS    
 

The Trust will advance payment for the reasonable expenses incurred by the member, the 
member’s spouse, or the member’s children for necessary medical treatment resulting from injury 
sustained while occupying a named member’s vehicle which is a covered auto under this 
coverage agreement and which is being used within the scope of permission granted by the named 
member.   In the event of payment to any person under this provision, such payment made shall 
be with the understanding and agreement that the Trust shall be entitled to reimbursement up to 
the full amount of the Trust’s payments from any other medical, workers’ compensation, or auto 
personal injury protection coverage available to that person. The maximum amount available under 
this provision is $10,000 per person, per occurrence. 
 
  

10. UNINSURED/UNDERINSURED MOTORIST COVERAGE 
 

A.   
 (1) Subject to the terms, conditions, and limitations of this Section 10., the Trust will 

pay all sums that the member, the heirs, or the legal representative of the member 
shall be legally entitled to recover as general and special damages from the owner 
or operator of an uninsured vehicle because of bodily injury sustained by the 
member caused by accident and arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use 
of the uninsured vehicle. Determination as to whether the member, the member’s 
heirs or the member’s legal representative is legally entitled to recover such 
damages, and if so, the amount thereof, shall be made by agreement between the 
member and the Trust, or, in the event of disagreement, may be determined by 
arbitration as provided in subsection J. of this section. Uninsured vehicle includes 
underinsured vehicle, which is a vehicle with respect to which there is motor 
vehicle liability insurance that provides recovery in an amount that is less than the 
limit of liability applicable to bodily injury claims under this coverage agreement.  

 
(2) No judgment against any person or organization alleged to be legally responsible 

for bodily injury, except for proceedings instituted against the Trust as provided 
in this policy, shall be conclusive, as between the member and the Trust, on the 
issues of liability of the person or organization or of the amount of damages to which 
the member is legally entitled. 

  
  B.   ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS  

 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 17 of 33 

 

   As used in this section: 
 

(1) "Bodily injury" means bodily injury, sickness or disease, including death resulting 
there from. 

 
(2) "Hit-and-run vehicle" means a vehicle that causes bodily injury to a member 

arising out of physical contact of the vehicle with the member or with a vehicle the 
member is occupying at the time of the accident, provided: 

    
a. The identity of either the operator or the owner of the hit-and-run vehicle 

cannot be ascertained; 
    

b. The member or someone on behalf of the member reported the accident 
within 72 hours to a police, peace or judicial officer, to the department of 
Transportation or to the equivalent department in the state where the 
accident occurred, and filed with the Trust within 30 days thereafter a 
statement under oath that the member or the legal representative of the 
member has a cause or causes of action arising out of the accident for 
damages against a person or persons whose identities are unascertainable, 
and setting forth the facts in support thereof; and  

    
c. At the Trust's request, the member or the legal representative of the 

member makes available for inspection the vehicle the member was 
occupying at the time of the accident. 

   
(3)  "Member," when unqualified and when applied to uninsured motorist coverage, 

means the named member as described in this Trust coverage agreement and any 
other person required to be designated as an “insured” under ORS 742.504 (2)(A). 

 
  (4)   "Member vehicle," except as provided in paragraph (5) of the provision means: 

a. the vehicle described in the most recent auto schedule on file with the trust 
or a newly acquired or substitute vehicle; or 

 
b. a non-owned vehicle operated by the member provided that the actual use 

thereof is with the permission of the owner of the vehicle and the vehicle is 
not owned by nor furnished for the regular or frequent use of the member. 

 
(5) "Member vehicle" does not include a trailer of any type unless the trailer is a   

described vehicle in this coverage agreement. 
  

(6)   "Occupying" means in or upon or entering into or alighting from. 
 

(7)  "Phantom vehicle" means a vehicle that causes bodily injury to a member arising 
out of a motor vehicle accident that is caused by a vehicle that has no physical 
contact with the member or the vehicle the member is occupying at the time of the 
accident, provided: 

 
a. the identity of either the operator or the owner of the phantom vehicle 

cannot be ascertained; 
 
b. the facts of the accident can be corroborated by competent evidence other 

than the testimony of the member or any person having an uninsured 
motorist claim resulting from the accident; and 

 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 18 of 33 

 

c. the member or someone on behalf of the member reported the accident 
within 72 hours to a police, peace or judicial officer, to the Department of 
Transportation or to the equivalent department in the state where the 
accident occurred, and filed with the Trust within 30 days thereafter a 
statement under oath that the member  or the legal representative of the 
member has a cause or causes of action arising out of the accident for 
damages against a person or persons whose identities are unascertainable, 
and setting forth the facts in support thereof. 

  
(8)  "State" includes the District of Columbia, a territory or possession of the United 
 States and a province of Canada. 

  
(9) "Stolen vehicle" means a member vehicle that causes bodily injury to the 

member arising out of a motor vehicle accident if: 
   

a. The vehicle is operated without the consent of the                               member; 
 
b. The operator of the vehicle does not have collectible motor vehicle bodily 

injury liability insurance; 
 
c. The member or someone on behalf of the member reported the accident 

within 72 hours to a police, peace or judicial officer or to the equivalent 
department in the state where the accident occurred; and 

d. The member or someone on behalf of the member cooperates with the 
appropriate law enforcement agency in the prosecution of the theft of the 
vehicle. 

  
(10)   "Uninsured vehicle," except as provided in paragraph (11) of this provision, 

means: 
   

a. A vehicle with respect to the ownership, maintenance or use of which there 
is no  collectible motor vehicle bodily injury liability insurance, in at least the 
amounts or limits prescribed for bodily injury or death under ORS 806.070 
applicable at the time of the accident with respect to any person or 
organization legally responsible for the use of the vehicle, or with respect 
to which there is collectible bodily injury liability insurance applicable at the 
time of the accident but the insurance company writing the insurance denies 
coverage or the company writing the insurance becomes  voluntarily or 
involuntarily declared bankrupt or  for which a receiver is appointed or 
becomes insolvent. It shall be a disputable presumption that a vehicle is 
uninsured in the event the member and the Trust, after reasonable efforts, 
fail to discover within 90 days from the date of the accident, the existence of 
a valid and collectible motor vehicle bodily injury liability insurance 
applicable at the time of the accident. 

 
b. A hit-and-run vehicle. 
 
c. A phantom vehicle. 
 
d. A stolen vehicle. 

  
(11)  "Uninsured vehicle" does not include: 

   
a. A member vehicle, unless the vehicle is a stolen vehicle; 

 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 19 of 33 

 

b. A vehicle that is owned or operated by a self-insured within the meaning of 
any motor vehicle financial responsibility law, motor carrier law or any similar 
law; 

 
c. A vehicle that is owned by the United States of America, Canada, a state, 

a political subdivision of any such government or an agency of any such 
government; 

 
d. A land motor vehicle or trailer, if operated on rails or crawler-treads or while 

located for use as a residence or premises and not as a vehicle; 
 

e. A farm-type tractor or equipment designed for use principally off public 
roads, except while actually upon public roads; or 

 
f. A vehicle owned by or furnished for the regular or frequent use of the 

member. 
  

(12)  "Vehicle" means every device in, upon or by which any person or property is or 
may be transported or drawn upon a public highway, but does not include devices 
moved by human power or used exclusively upon stationary rails or tracks. 

 
C. This coverage applies only to accidents that occur on and after the effective date of this 

coverage agreement, during the coverage period and within the United States of America, 
its territories or possessions, or Canada. 

 
D.  

(1) This coverage does not apply to bodily injury of a member with respect to which 
the member or the legal representative of the member shall, without the written 
consent of the Trust, make any settlement with or prosecute to judgment any action 
against any person or organization who may be legally liable therefore. 

 
(2) This coverage does not apply to bodily injury to a member while occupying a   

vehicle, other than a vehicle covered by the Trust, owned by, or furnished for the 
regular use of, the named member or through being struck by the vehicle. 

 
(3) This coverage does not apply so as to inure directly or indirectly to the benefit of 

any workers' compensation carrier, any person or organization qualifying as a self-
insured under any workers' compensation or disability benefits law or any similar 
law or the State Accident Insurance Fund Corporation. 

 
(4) This coverage does not apply with respect to underinsured motorist benefits 

unless: 
  

a. The limits of liability under any bodily injury liability insurance applicable at 
the time of the accident regarding the injured person have been exhausted 
by payment of judgments or settlements to the injured person or other 
injured persons; 

 
b. The described limits have been offered in settlement, the Trust has refused 

consent under paragraph (1) of this subsection and the member protects 
the Trust's right of subrogation to the claim against the tortfeasor; 

 
c. The member gives credit to the Trust for the unrealized portion of the 

described liability limits as if the full limits had been received if less than the 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 20 of 33 

 

described limits have been offered in settlement, and the Trust has 
consented under paragraph (1) of this subsection; or 

 
d. The member gives credit to the Trust for the unrealized portion of the 

described liability limits as if the full limits had been received if less than the 
described limits have been offered in settlement and, if the Trust has 
refused consent under paragraph (1) of this subsection, the member 
protects the Trust's right of subrogation to the claim against the tortfeasor. 

 
e. When seeking consent under paragraph (1) or (4) of this subsection, the 

member shall allow the Trust a reasonable time in which to collect and 
evaluate information related to consent to the proposed offer of settlement. 
The member shall provide promptly to the Trust any information that is 
reasonably requested by the Trust and that is within the custody and control 
of the member. Consent will be presumed to be given if the Trust does not 
respond within a reasonable time. For purposes of this paragraph, a 
"reasonable time" is no more than 30 days from the Trust's receipt of a 
written request for   consent, unless the member and the Trust agree 
otherwise. 

 
E.  

(1)  As soon as practicable, the member or other person making claim shall give to the 
Trust written proof of claim, under oath if required, including full particulars of   the 
nature and extent of the injuries, treatment and other details entering into the 
determination of the amount payable hereunder. The member and every other 
person making claim hereunder shall submit to examinations under oath by any 
person named by the Trust and subscribe the same, as often as may reasonably 
be required. Proof of claim shall be made upon forms furnished by the Trust unless 
the Trust fails to furnish the forms within 15 days after receiving notice of claim. 

   
(2)  Upon reasonable request of and at the expense of the Trust, the injured person 

shall submit to physical examinations by physicians selected by the Trust and shall, 
upon each request from the Trust, execute authorization to enable the Trust to 
obtain medical reports and copies of records. 

  
F.  If, before the Trust makes payment of loss hereunder, the member or the legal 

representative of the member institutes any legal action for bodily injury against any 
person or organization legally responsible for the use of a vehicle involved in the accident, 
a copy of the summons and complaint or other process served in connection with the legal 
action shall be forwarded immediately to the Trust by the member or the legal 
representative of the member. 

 
G.  

(1)  The limit of liability stated in the declarations under Coverage F as applicable to 
"each person" is the limit of the Trust's liability for all damages because of  bodily 
injury sustained by one person as the result of any one accident and, subject to 
the above provision respecting each person, the limit of liability stated in the 
declarations as applicable to "each accident" is the total limit of the company's 
liability for all damages because of bodily injury sustained by two or more persons 
as the result of any one accident. 

(2)   Any payment made under this coverage to or for a member shall be applied in 
reduction of any amount that the member may be entitled to recover from any 
person who is a member under the bodily injury liability coverage of this policy. 

  



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 21 of 33 

 

(3) Any amount payable under the terms of this coverage because of bodily injury 
sustained in an accident by a person who is a member under this coverage shall 
be reduced by: 
 
a. This coverage shall be excess over any other collateral benefits to which 

the injured member is entitled due to injury arising from the use of an 
uninsured vehicle, including, but not limited to, other uninsured motorist 
coverage, insurance benefits, governmental benefits or gratuitous benefits. 

 
b. Any amount payable under the terms of this coverage because of bodily 

injury sustained in an accident by a person who is a member under this 
coverage shall be reduced by the credit given to the Trust pursuant to 
subsection D. (4) c. or d. of this section. 

 
c. The amount payable under the terms of this coverage may not be reduced 

by the amount of liability proceeds offered, described in subsection D. (4) b. 
or d. of this section, that has not been paid to the injured person.  If liability 
proceeds have been offered and not paid, the amount payable under the 
terms of the coverage shall include the amount of liability limits offered but 
not accepted due to the Trust's refusal to consent. The member shall 
cooperate so as to permit the Trust to proceed by subrogation or 
assignment to prosecute the claim against the uninsured motorist. 

 
H.  No action shall lie against the Trust unless, as a condition precedent thereto, the        

member or the legal representative of the member has fully complied with all the        terms 
of this policy. 

   
I.  With respect to bodily injury to a member: 

    
(1) While occupying a vehicle owned by a named member under this               

coverage, the insurance under this coverage is primary. 
 
(2) While occupying a vehicle not owned by a named member this coverage        shall 

apply only as excess insurance over any primary insurance available to the 
occupant that is similar to this coverage, and this excess coverage shall    then 
apply only in the amount by which the applicable limit of liability of this excess 
coverage exceeds the sum of the applicable limits of liability of all    primary 
insurance available to the occupant. 

  
a. If a member is an insured under other primary or excess insurance     

available to the member that is similar to this coverage, then the          
member's damages are deemed not to exceed the higher of the         
applicable limits of liability of the additional primary coverage or            excess 
insurance available to the member, and the Trust is not  liable under this 
coverage for a greater proportion of the member's  damages than the 
applicable limit of liability of this coverage bears to the sum of  the applicable 
limits of liability of this coverage and  other primary or excess insurance 
available to the member. 

 
b. With respect to bodily injury to a member while occupying any motor 

vehicle used as a public or livery conveyance, this coverage shall apply only 
as excess coverage over any other insurance available to the member that 
is similar to this coverage, and this coverage shall then apply only in the 
amount by which the applicable limit of liability of this coverage exceeds the 
sum of the applicable limits of liability of all other insurance. 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 22 of 33 

 

  
J.  If any person making claim hereunder and the Trust do not agree that the person is legally  

entitled to recover damages from the owner or operator of an uninsured vehicle because 
of  bodily injury to the member, or do not agree as to the amount of payment that may be  
owing  under this coverage, then, in the event the member and the Trust elect by mutual  
agreement at the time of the dispute to settle the matter by arbitration, the arbitration shall 
take place under the arbitration laws of the State of Oregon or, if the parties agree,  
according to any other procedure. Any judgment upon the award rendered by the   
arbitrators may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof, provided, however, that 
the costs to the member of the arbitration proceeding do not exceed $100 and that all other   
costs of arbitration are borne by the Trust. "Costs" as used in this provision does not 
include attorney fees or expenses incurred in the production of evidence or witnesses or 
the making of transcripts of the arbitration proceedings. The Member and the Trust each 
agree to consider themselves bound and to be bound by any award made by the arbitrators 
pursuant to this coverage in the event of such election. At the election of the member, the 
arbitration shall be held: 

  
(1) In the county and state of residence of the member; 

 
(2) In the county and state where the member's cause of action against the uninsured 

motorist arose; or 
 

(3) At any other place mutually agreed upon by the member and the Trust. 
  

K.   In the event of payment to any person under this coverage: 
  

(1)  The Trust shall be entitled to the extent of the payment to the proceeds of any 
settlement or judgment that may result from the exercise of any rights of recovery 
of the person against any uninsured motorist legally responsible for the bodily 
injury because of which payment is made; 

  
(2)  The person shall hold in Trust for the benefit of the Trust all rights of recovery that 

the person shall have against such other uninsured person or organization because 
of the damages that are the subject of claim made under this coverage, but only to 
the extent that the claim is made or paid herein; 

  
(3)  If the member is injured by the joint or concurrent act or acts of two or more    

persons, one or more of whom is uninsured, the member shall have the election to   
receive from the Trust any payment to which the member would be entitled under 
this coverage by reason of the act or acts of the uninsured motorist, or the member 
may, with the written consent of the Trust, proceed with legal action against any or 
all persons claimed to be liable to the member for the injuries. If the member elects 
to receive payment from the Trust under this coverage, then the member shall hold 
in trust for the benefit of the Trust all rights of recovery the member shall have 
against any other person, firm or organization because of the damages that are the 
subject of claim made under this coverage, but only to the extent of the actual 
payment made by the Trust; 

  
(4)  The member shall do whatever is proper to secure and shall do nothing after loss 

to prejudice such rights; 
  

(5)  If requested in writing by the Trust, the member shall take, through any           
representative not in conflict in interest with the member, designated by the Trust, 
such action as may be necessary or appropriate to recover payment as damages 
from such other uninsured person or organization, such action to be taken in the 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 23 of 33 

 

name of the member, but only to the extent of the payment made hereunder. In the 
event of a recovery, the Trust shall be reimbursed out of the recovery for expenses, 
costs and attorney fees incurred by the Trust in connection therewith; and 

 
(6)  The member shall execute and deliver to the Trust any instruments and papers as 

may be appropriate to secure the rights and obligations of the member and the 
Trust established by this provision. 

 
L.    

(1)  The parties to this coverage agree that no cause of action shall accrue to the   
member under this coverage unless within two years from the date of the accident: 

  
a. Agreement as to the amount due under the policy has been concluded; 

 
b. The member or the Trust has formally instituted arbitration proceedings; 

 
c. The member has filed an action against the Trust; or 

 
d. Suit for bodily injury has been filed against the uninsured motorist and, within 

two years from the date of settlement or final judgment against the uninsured 
motorist, the member has formally instituted arbitration proceedings or filed 
an action against the Trust. 

   
(2)  For purposes of this subsection: 
 

a. "Date of settlement" means the date on which a written settlement 
agreement or release is signed by a member or, in the absence of these 
documents, the date on which the member or the attorney for the member 
receives payment of any sum required by the settlement agreement. An 
advance payment as defined in ORS 31.550 shall not be deemed a payment 
of a settlement for purposes of the time limitation in this subsection. 

  
b. "Final judgment" means a judgment that has become final by lapse of time 

for appeal or by entry in an appellate court of an appellate judgment.  
 

 
11. LIMITED POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE 
 
            A.    Subject to the provisions of this Section, and notwithstanding exclusion Section 4.I., the 

Trust will pay, up to the limits of coverage set forth in this section, the following, provided 
they arise out of and directly result from, a pollution occurrence: 

 
(1) All sums the member shall be legally obligated to pay as damages because of 
 bodily injury or property damage;  
 

 (2) Legal costs necessarily incurred in defense of the member in claims or lawsuits 
against the member alleging covered claims; 

  
(3) Loss, cost, or expense arising out of the legal requirement or government direction 

or government request that the named member clean up, remove, treat, detoxify 
or neutralize pollutants; all arising out of a pollution occurrence. 
 

B. ADDITIONAL DEFINITION – As used in this Coverage Part: 
  

“Pollution Occurrence” is applicable only to the LIMITED POLLUTION LIABILITY 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 24 of 33 

 

COVERAGE section of the Coverage Agreement, and means the actual or alleged 
accidental discharge, dispersal, release, or escape of pollutants at or from the named 
member’s premises or facilities, or in connection with operations performed by the named 
member. A series of such actual or alleged incidents, or a continuous or repeated exposure 
to substantially the same general harmful conditions, shall be considered a single pollution 
occurrence, and if the pollution occurrence  begins  in  one  coverage  period  and  ends  
in  another,  it  shall  be deemed to have taken place during the last such coverage period, 
and only one “per occurrence” limit, as set forth in the LIMITED POLLUTION LIABILITY 
COVERAGE  section  shall  be  available  for  such  multi-period  pollution occurrence. 

 
              C.   This LIMITED POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE does not apply to: 
 

(1) A pollution occurrence from underground storage tanks or underground pipes or 
other component parts of underground pipe systems leading to or from 
underground storage tanks. 

 
(2) Any pollution occurrence at a landfill owned or operated by the member. 
   
(3) Bodily injury related to exposure to asbestos. 
 
(4) Damage to property owned by, or in the care, custody or control of the member. 
 
(5) A pollution occurrence at premises or facilities acquired by the named member 

on or after July 1, 2010, if the member knew, or with due diligence should have 
known, of the pollution occurrence at the time of the acquisition. 

 
(6) Claims that are otherwise covered elsewhere in this coverage agreement. 

 
 D.   Per Member annual limit.  The most the Trust shall be obligated to pay under this LIMITED 

POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE is $100,000 for any single pollution occurrence, or 
in the aggregate for any number of pollution occurrences for any single member in any 
coverage period. 

 
 

12. CYBER SECURITY EXPENSE COVERAGE 
 

A. The Trust will reimburse the named member for cyber security expenses reasonably 
incurred by the named member which arise from an occurrence that qualifies as a cyber 
liability event.  For purposes of this coverage, the term cyber security expense means: 

(1) Direct Member Cost Notification Costs incurred by the named member, with the 
Trust’s prior consent, resulting from either the named member’s legal obligation 
to comply with a breach notice law because of a cyber liability event, or the 
named member’s voluntary election to provide such notification following a cyber 
liability event.  

(2) Third Party Liability Damages which the member becomes legally obligated to pay 
because of: 

a. the member’s failure to timely disclose a cyber liability event in violation 
of any breach notice law; or 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 25 of 33 

 

b. the member’s failure to administer an identity theft prevention program or 
take necessary actions to prevent identity theft required by governmental 
statute or regulation that results in a cyber liability event.   

(3) Penalties Regulatory penalties which the named member becomes legally 
obligated to pay through a regulatory proceeding because of a cyber liability 
event caused or contributed to by a members’ violation of a privacy law.   

(4) Extortion Cyber extortion costs incurred by the named member. For purposes of 
this coverage “cyber extortion cost” means the reasonable and necessarily costs 
incurred with the Trust’s written consent, to combat a credible threat.  Cyber 
extortion costs include funds or other property paid by the named member, with 
the written consent of the Trust, to person(s) reasonably believed to be responsible 
for the credible threat, in response to a specific demand in connection with that 
credible threat, and for the purpose of terminating that credible threat and all 
residual effects.  

(5) Impersonation Fraud Coverage is subject to the cyber excess limits on the CIS     
Declaration Page, CIS will reimburse for loss of funds as a direct result of a Member 
employee who in good faith and within established Member controls transfers 
money or securities by electronic transfer based on fraudulent transfer instructions 
received and relied upon from an imposter utilizing a fraudulent email or phone call 
or other communication method common to the Member to transfer money or 
securities to a falsely purported vendor with whom a written contract is in force, or 
a falsely purported director, officer, or other employee of the Member, without the 
vendor’s or Member’s knowledge or consent. 

 

B. LIMIT OF LIABILITY - The most the Trust will pay to or on behalf of a member for any 
one or more cyber claims in a single coverage year is $50,000, subject to the following 
provisions: 

(1) The coverage provided under this Section shall be completely extinguished and 
exhausted, and the Trust shall have no obligation to pay any loss or defend any 
claim under this Endorsement, when all losses paid by the Trust arising of out all 
cyber liability events reach an aggregate limit of $5,000,000 for this coverage 
program year.  

(2) The limit of coverage set forth in this Section is separate from those limits of liability 
applicable to any other coverage provided under the Trust General and Auto 
Liability Coverage Agreement.  No other limit stated in the Trust General and Auto 
Liability Coverage Agreement applies with respect to any cyber liability event 
covered under this Endorsement (or which would have been covered under but for 
the exhaustion of any applicable limit). 

C. ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS - As used in this Coverage Part:  

(1) “Breach notice law” means any state, or federal regulation that requires notice to 
persons whose personally identifiable non-public information was accessed or 
reasonably may have been accessed by an unauthorized person. 

(2)  “Computer security” means software, computer or network hardware devices, as 
well as the named member’s written information security policies and procedures, 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 26 of 33 

 

the function or purpose of which is to prevent unauthorized access or use, a 
denial of service attack against computer systems, infection of computer 
systems by malicious code or transmission of malicious code from computer 
systems.  Computer security includes anti-virus and intrusion detection software, 
firewalls and electronic systems that provide access control to computer systems 
through the use of passwords, biometric or similar identification of authorized users.  

(3) “Computer systems” means computers and associated input and output devices, 
data storage devices, networking equipment, and back up facilities:  

a. operated by and either owned by or leased to the named member; or  

b. systems operated by a third party service provider and used for the purpose 
of providing hosted computer application services to the named member or 
for processing, maintaining, hosting or storing the named member’s 
electronic data, pursuant to written contract with the named member for 
such services. 

(4) “Credible threat” means a criminal threat to:  

a. Damage, destroy, corrupt, alter, delete, or otherwise physically preclude or 
hinder the named member’s use of its computer systems, or 

b. Release personally identifiable non-public information through the 
unauthorized access or use of the named member’s computer 
systems, or 

c. Introduce malicious code into the named member computer system, or 

d. Use named member’s data to enter into false communications with the 
named member’s citizens to obtain personal or confidential information 
(also known as “pharming” or “phishing”). 

(5) “Cyber claim” means: 

a. a written demand including the service of a suit or institution of a regulatory 
or arbitration proceeding, received by the named member alleging a cyber 
liability event and seeking money or services; 

b. a written threat or initiation of a suit alleging a cyber liability event and 
seeking injunctive relief (meaning a temporary restraining order or a 
preliminary or permanent injunction); and 

c. with respect to coverage provided under Section 12.A.(3) noted above, 
institution of a regulatory proceeding against the member.  

(6) “Cyber claims expenses” means: 

a. reasonable and necessary fees charged by an attorney approved by the 
Trust and paid by the Trust; 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 27 of 33 

 

b. all other legal costs and expenses resulting from the investigation, 
adjustment, defense and appeal of a cyber claim, suit, or proceeding 
arising in connection therewith, or circumstance which might lead to a cyber 
claim, if incurred by the Trust, or by the named member with the prior 
written consent of the Trust; and 

c. the premium cost for appeal bonds for covered judgments or bonds to 
release property used to secure a legal obligation, if required in any cyber 
claim against a named member; provided the Trust shall have no 
obligation to appeal or obtain bonds. 

d. Cyber claims expenses do not include any salary, overhead, or other 
charges by the member for any time spent in cooperating in the defense 
and investigation of any cyber claim or circumstance that might lead to a 
cyber claim notified under this Endorsement.   

(7) “Cyber liability event” means: 

a. theft, loss, or unauthorized disclosure of personally identifiable non-
public information that is in the care, custody or control of the member, or 
of an independent contractor that is holding, processing or transferring such 
information on behalf of the named member; that occurs during the 
coverage period and/or  

b. one or more of the following acts or incidents which occur during the 
coverage period that directly result from a failure of computer security to 
prevent a security breach: 

i. the alteration, corruption, destruction, deletion, or damage to a data 
asset stored on computer systems; 

ii. the failure to prevent transmission of malicious code from 
computer systems to third party computer systems; or 

iii. the participation by the named member’s computer systems in a 
denial of service attack directed against a third party computer 
system. 

(8) “Data asset” means any software or electronic data that exists in computer 
systems and that is subject to regular back up procedures, including computer 
programs, applications, account information, customer information, private or 
personal information, marketing information, financial information and any other 
information maintained by the named member in its ordinary course of business.  

(9) “Denial of service attack” means an attack intended by the perpetrator to 
overwhelm the capacity of a computer system by sending an excessive volume of 
electronic data to such computer system in order to prevent authorized access to 
such computer system. 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 28 of 33 

 

(10) “Limit of Liability” means the most the Trust will pay for a cyber claim or loss to 
which this Endorsement applies, as further set forth in Section 12.B., “LIMIT OF 
LIABILITY.” 

(11) “Loss” means damages, cyber claims expenses, privacy notification costs, 
and penalties.  

(12) “Malicious code” means any virus, Trojan horse, worm or any other similar 
software program, code or script intentionally designed to insert itself into computer 
memory or onto a computer disk and/or spread itself from one computer to another. 

(13) “Penalties” means: 

a. any civil fine or money penalty payable by the member to a governmental 
entity that is imposed in a regulatory proceeding by any other federal, state, 
or local governmental entity, in such entity’s regulatory or official capacity; 
amounts which the member is legally obligated to deposit in a fund as 
equitable relief for the payment of consumer claims due to an adverse 
judgment or settlement of a regulatory proceeding; but shall not include 
payments to charitable organizations or disposition of funds other than for 
payment of consumer claims for losses caused by a covered cyber 
liability event.  

(14) “Personally identifiable non-public information” means:  

a. information protected by privacy law. 

b. medical or health care information concerning the individual, including 
“protected health information” as defined in the Health Insurance Portability 
and Accountability Act of 1996, as amended, and regulations issued 
pursuant to the Act; 

c. the individual’s drivers license or state identification number; social security 
number; unpublished telephone numbers; credit, debit or other financial 
account numbers and associated security codes; access codes, passwords 
or personal identification numbers that allow access to the individual’s 
financial account information; 

but does not include publicly available information that is lawfully made available to 
the general public from government records. 

 
(15) “Privacy law” means a federal or state statute or regulation requiring the member 

to protect the confidentiality and/or security of personally identifiable non-public 
information.   

(16) “Privacy notification costs” means the following reasonable and necessary costs 
incurred by the named member within one year of the discovery of the cyber 
liability event: 

a. for services of a computer security expert to determine the existence and 
cause of any security breach resulting in an actual or reasonably 
suspected theft, loss or unauthorized disclosure of personally 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 29 of 33 

 

identifiable non-public information and the extent to which such 
information was accessed by an unauthorized person or persons;  

b. to provide notification in compliance with a breach notice law; 

c. for services of a public relations consultant hired for the purpose of averting 
or mitigating material damage to the named member’s reputation as a 
result of the cyber liability event; however, this coverage applies only after 
the named member’s costs for a public relations consultant have reached 
or exceeded $5,000. The amount so incurred by the named member does 
not work to reduce any deductible which might otherwise apply to the loss; 
and  

d. in connection with a credit file monitoring program, to be approved in 
advance by the Trust, consisting of: 

i. the offering of one year of credit monitoring services to those 
individuals whose personally identifiable non-public information 
was compromised or reasonably believed to be compromised as a 
result of the theft or unauthorized disclosure of information giving 
rise to a notification requirement pursuant to a breach notice law, 
or, with the Trust’s prior written agreement, at the named 
member’s voluntary election; and  

ii. mailing and other reasonable third party administrative costs 
associated with such a program; 

iii. provided, all such costs payable under this subsection (d) must be 
for the purpose of mitigating potential damages resulting from such 
cyber liability event. 

Privacy notification costs shall not include any internal salary or 
overhead, or other related expenses of the member.  
 

(17) “Regulatory proceeding” means a request for information, civil investigative 
demand, or civil proceeding commenced by service of a complaint or similar 
proceeding brought by or on behalf of a federal or state agency with regulatory 
capacity in connection with a cyber liability event. 

(18) “Security breach” means: 

a. Unauthorized access or use of computer systems, including 
unauthorized access or use resulting from the theft of a password from a 
computer system or from any member; 

b. denial of service attack against computer systems or third party 
computer systems; or 

c. infection of computer systems by malicious code or transmission of 
malicious code from computer systems, 

whether any of the foregoing is a specifically targeted attack or a generally 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 30 of 33 

 

distributed attack. 
 

(19) “Third party computer systems” means any computer systems that: 1) are not 
owned, operated or controlled by a member; and 2) does not include computer 
systems of a third party on which a member performs services.  Computer systems 
include associated input and output devices, data storage devices, networking 
equipment, and back up facilities. 

(20) “Unauthorized access or use” means the gaining of access to or use of computer 
systems by an unauthorized person or persons or the use of computer systems 
in an unauthorized manner. 

(21) “Unauthorized disclosure” means the disclosure of or access to information in a 
manner that is not authorized by the named member.   

D. DEDUCTIBLE - A $5,000 per occurrence deductible shall apply to any cyber claim or 
loss to which this Endorsement applies unless the named member has a per occurrence 
deductible amount of more than $5,000 per occurrence shown on the General and Auto 
Liability Coverage Agreement Declarations page, in which case the deductible shown on 
that Declarations page shall apply to any coverage afforded by this Endorsement for a 
cyber liability event.  Any coverage provided or payments made under this Endorsement 
are not to be considered as part of any Aggregate / Retrospective Deductible program and 
are not to be considered in the calculation of program balances.   

E. ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS - The following additional provisions apply to Defense and 
Settlement of cyber claims: 

(1) With respect to any cyber claim against the member seeking damages or 
penalties because of a cyber liability event covered under Coverage I.(2) or I.(3), 
and not otherwise excluded, 

a. The Trust shall have the right and duty to defend the member through 
counsel selected by the Trust.  

b.  The Trust’s duty to defend shall be satisfied by the Trust paying cyber 
claims expenses only.   

(2) Cyber claims expenses incurred by the Trust in the investigation and defense of 
any cyber claim with respect to a cyber liability event which occurs during the 
coverage period are within the limit of coverage and shall reduce such limit.   

(3) The limit of coverage available to pay the loss shall be reduced and may be 
completely exhausted by payment of cyber claims expenses paid or reimbursed 
by the Trust.   

(4) Once the Trust has exhausted the limit of coverage, the Trust may, at its option, 
withdraw from the defense of any cyber claim, and all costs of defense shall 
thereafter be the responsibility of the named member.    

F. ADDITIONAL EXCLUSIONS - This Cyber Security Expense Coverage, Coverage I, does 
not apply to any cyber claim or loss:  



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 31 of 33 

 

(1) For, arising out of, or resulting from bodily injury or property damage; 

(2) For, arising out of, or resulting from any employer-employee relations, policies, 
practices, acts or omissions, or any actual or alleged refusal to employ any person, 
or the member’s misconduct with respect to employees, whether such claim is 
brought by an employee, former employee, applicant for employment, or relative or 
domestic partner of such person. 

(3) For, arising out of, or resulting from any contractual liability or obligation, or arising 
out of or resulting from breach of contract or agreement either oral or written, 
provided, however, that this exclusion will not apply to the extent the member would 
have been liable in the absence of such contract or agreement; and further, this 
exclusion shall not apply to a contractual agreement to indemnify another party to 
the extent such agreement would be covered but for this exclusion. 

(4) For, arising out of, or resulting from any actual or alleged antitrust violation, restraint 
of trade, unfair competition, or false or deceptive or misleading advertising or 
violation of the Sherman Anti-Trust Act, the Clayton Act, or the Robinson-Patman 
Act, as amended; 

(5) For, arising out of or resulting from any actual or alleged false, deceptive or unfair 
trade practices; however, this exclusion does not apply to any claim or loss 
covered under this endorsement that results from a theft, loss or unauthorized 
disclosure of personally identifiable non-public information; 

(6) For, arising out of or resulting from: 

a. the actual or alleged unlawful collection or acquisition of personally 
identifiable non-public information by or on behalf of the member; or the 
failure to comply with a legal requirement to provide individuals with the 
ability to assent to or withhold assent (e.g. opt-in or opt-out) from the 
collection, disclosure or use of personally identifiable non-public 
information; or 

b. the distribution of unsolicited email, direct mail, or facsimiles, wiretapping, 
audio or video recording, or telemarketing, if such distribution, wiretapping 
or recording is done by or on behalf of the member. 

(7) For, arising out of or resulting from any of the following: 

a. any actual or alleged violation of the Organized Crime Control Act of 1970 
(commonly known as the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations 
Act or RICO), as amended, or any regulation promulgated there under or 
any similar federal law or legislation, or law or legislation of any state, 
province or other jurisdiction similar to the foregoing, whether such law is 
statutory, regulatory or common law;  

b. any actual or alleged violation of any securities law, regulation or legislation, 
including but not limited to the Securities Act of 1933, the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, the Investment Act of 1940, any state or provincial 
blue sky or securities law, any other federal securities law or legislation, or 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 32 of 33 

 

any other similar law or legislation of any state, province or other jurisdiction, 
or any amendment to the above laws, or any violation of any order, ruling or 
regulation issued pursuant to the above laws; 

c. any actual or alleged violation of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, the 
National Labor Relations Act, the Worker Adjustment and Retraining Act of 
1988, the Certified Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, the 
Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970, any similar law or legislation of 
any state, province or other jurisdiction, or any amendment to the above law 
or legislation, or any violation of any order, ruling or regulation issued 
pursuant to the above laws or legislation; or 

d. any actual or alleged discrimination of any kind including but not limited to 
age, color, race, sex, creed, national origin, marital status, sexual 
preference, disability or pregnancy;  

(8) For, arising out of, or resulting from any criminal, dishonest, fraudulent, or malicious 
act, error or omission, any intentional security breach, or intentional or knowing 
violation of the law committed by any member.  

(9) For, arising out of or resulting from any actual or alleged: 

a. infringement of patent or patent rights or misuse or abuse of patent; or 

b. infringement of copyright arising from or related to software code or software 
products; or 

c. use or misappropriation of any ideas or trade secrets by a member, or on 
behalf of, or in collusion with a member. 

(10) In connection with or resulting from a cyber claim brought by or on behalf of any 
other state, federal, or local governmental entity, in such entity’s regulatory or official 
capacity; provided, this exclusion shall not apply to a cyber claim otherwise 
covered under Coverage 12.A.(3).; 

(11) Arising out of or resulting from any of the following:  

a. trading losses, trading liabilities or change in value of accounts; any loss of 
monies, securities or tangible property of others in the care, custody or 
control of the member;  

b. the monetary value of any electronic fund transfers or transactions by or on 
behalf of the member which is lost, diminished, or damaged during transfer 
from, into or between accounts; or  

c. the value of coupons, price discounts, prizes, awards, or any other valuable 
consideration given in excess of the total contracted or expected amount; 

(12) For damage to, destruction of, corruption of, or any loss of use by any member of 
any computer systems or data asset, including without limitation any costs or 
expenses to the member to repair or replace any computer systems or data 
asset. 



 
CIS – GL/AL (7/1/20)                                                                                                                          Page 33 of 33 

 

(13) Any cyber claims arising out of the utilization of any Microsoft operating system that 
is not currently supported by Microsoft, including, but not limited to, Microsoft 95, 
XP, or Windows 7. 

 

 

Patrick Priest 
Executive Director, CIS 



 

S\Meetings Minutes & Agendas\Board of Health Meetings\Board Packets\Board Packets 2021\ Contract Summary Dec 2020 
& Jan 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 

North Central Public Health District 
“Caring For Our Communities” 

 
 

NCPHD Contracts Summary for Board of Health Meeting of January 12th, 2020 
 
Submitted By: Shellie Campbell, Interim Director 
 
December 2020 

1. AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT for Professional Services between Judy Bankman, 
contractor and NCPHD. Services include: project support for accreditation 
requirements, support for COVID-19 response, data reporting for EOMC Collaborative 
and other duties as assigned. 

a. Fiscal Impact: Not to exceed a cost of $26,000. 
 

2. MOU between Solid Rock Community Church and NCPHD to offer an opportunity for 
obtaining WIC services for the residents of their facility. 

a. Fiscal Impact: No fiscal impact. 
 

3. AGREEMENT between Community Counseling Solutions (CCS) and NCPHD for 
contact tracing services. 

a. Fiscal Impact: $25,000 to be received by NCPHD for contact tracing. 
 

4. CONTRACT AMENDMENT 18-241_1 between the Oregon Military Department, Office 
of Emergency Management (OEM) and NCPHD to extend the expiration date of the 
original contract. 

a. Fiscal Impact: No fiscal impact. 
 

5. MOU between Eastern Oregon Center for Independent Living and NCPHD to outline the 
responsibilities for collaborative work with regard to community engagement, education 
and outreach, contact tracing and social services wraparound supports for the local 
community. 

a. Fiscal Impact: No fiscal impact. 
 

6. AGREEMENT for Professional Services between Immense Imagery and NCPHD for 
services which include: project consulting, graphic design, website design, and 
marketing. 

a. Fiscal Impact: to NCPHD is a cost of $5,000. 
 

7. OHA 159826 Fifteenth Amendment to Oregon Health Authority 2019-2021 
Intergovernmental Agreement. 

a. Fiscal Impact: -$696,875 FY 20 and +$831,441.78 FY 21. 
 
 



 

S\Meetings Minutes & Agendas\Board of Health Meetings\Board Packets\Board Packets 2021\ Contract Summary Dec 2020 
& Jan 2021 

8. AGREEMENT for Professional Services between Smith-Wagner Brucker Consulting 
and NCPHD for a review of the finance department. 

a. Fiscal Impact: The cost to NCPHD will not exceed $11,960. 
 

9. AGREEMENT for Professional Services between One Tree Hill and NCPHD for Human 
Resources services to NCPHD. 

a. Fiscal Impact: The cost to NCPHD will not exceed $12,875. 
 
 
JANUARY 2021 
 

1. AMENDMENT to the Provider Agreement between Providence Health Plan, Providence 
Health Assurance and Providence Plan Partners to Provider Agreement and North 
Central Public Health District to amend the commercial line of business, Providence 
Signature Network and Providence Choice Network Exhibit Fee Schedule. 

a. Fiscal Impact: No fiscal impact. 
 

2. MOU regarding community engagement, education, support, and outreach for active 
surveillance of COVID-19 Case Contacts between Columbia Gorge Health Council and 
North Central Public Health District. 

a. Fiscal Impact: No fiscal impact. 
 

3. AGREEMENT for Professional Services between Heidi Venture and North Central 
Public Health District Prepare Description of services includes: Lead a variety of 
committee and staff meetings as needed; Work with Eastern Oregon Modernization ln 
Collaborative (EOMC) as requested preparing and leading meetings; Work with NCPHD 
Leadership Team and committees to develop plans, policies, procedures, and system 
changes as requested; and Work with NCPHD staff in the development and application 
of grant requests. 

a. Fiscal Impact: Cost to NCPHD not to exceed $5,000. 
 

4. VEHICLE LEASE AGREEMENT between Wasco County and North Central Public 
Health District for lease of a vehicle. 

a. Fiscal Impact: No fiscal impact. 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

North Central Public Health District 
“Caring for Our Communities” 

 
NCPHD Interim Directors Report for Board of Health Meeting of January 12th, 2021 
 

Presented by Shellie Campbell, Interim Director 

 
Happy New Year! We are so happy to see 2021 arrive. Even though we are still living with the 
COVID-19 Pandemic we have HOPE with the vaccine arriving. 

A quick look back to December 2020, we saw the largest increase in positive COVID cases in 
the district than in any previous month. This was not only disappointing but certainly 
concerning moving into the winter months. The COVID Team at NCPHD continues to offer 
COVID testing for people that are symptomatic or identify as close contact to a positive case. 
We added a testing tent in the parking lot to make it possible to continue testing outside. 

Moving to January 2021 we are optimistic. NCPHD staff is working hard to organize, train, 
staff, coordinate and communicate for the release of the COVID Vaccine. Early in January, we 
partnered with Mid-Columbia Fire and Rescue and our EMS partners in Sherman and Gilliam 
County to provide vaccine to all first responders (fire, police, ambulance, EMS). We are also in 
close communication with long-term care facilities, assisted living facilities, and MCMC, which 
are a high priority in Phase 1a. Planning to distribute the vaccine has been challenging, we are 
getting a notification on Mondays telling us when and how many vaccines we will receive on 
Wednesdays. Not the best system so far, but we continue to work closely with OHA to improve 
the distribution and communication system. 

We continue to evaluate where we are, hire, and train staff as needed while keeping an eye on 
available funding from state and federal government. January also brings with it our budget 
process and planning, which in COVID time is ever-changing. We are working with One Tree 
Hill Consulting to provide an updated salary survey and compensation plan to provide to the 
BOH in February. This will be an integral part of the three counties' budget plans as well as for 
NCPHD. 

I am grateful to work with the exceptional staff here at NCPHD. Their commitment and passion 
to support the communities in Wasco, Sherman, and Gilliam is inspiring. 

Here is to looking forward in 2021. Thank you to the Board of Health for your continued 
support. 

 
 
 
 
 



2020

NAME COUNTY EMAIL ADDRESS TERM OF MEMBERSHIP

Commissioner Pat Shannon Gilliam pat.shannon@co.gilliam.or.us Gilliam County Court, 

PO Box 427, Condon, 

OR 97823

Begins: 1/4/2021

Ends: 

Dani Sperry Gilliam dsperry.sgilliamhealth@gmail.com PO Box 597, Condon, 

OR 97823

Begins: 9/16/2020

Ends: 12/31/2023

Tena Ferguson Gilliam tenaf@arlingtonclinic.org Arlington Medical 

Center, 110 On the 

Mall St., Arlington, OR 

97812

Friday, December 31, 2021

Commissioner Joan Bird 

Vice-Chair

Sherman jbird@co.sherman.or.us Sherman County Court, 

PO Box 365, Moro, OR 

97039

500 Court Street, Moro 

OR

No Set Date: Assignments are 

Reviewed Yearly & will remain unless 

there is a need to change the 

assignment.

Roger J. Whitley Sherman rbngv@hotmail.com PO Box 123, Grass 

Valley, OR 97029

Thursday, December 31, 2020

Jayme Alsup 

(Mason)

Sherman jaymethompson2014@gmail.com PO Box 132, Moro, OR 

97039

No Set Date: Asked by 

Commissioner Bird in summer of 

2019 to serve on BOH.

Commissioner Kathy Schwartz 

Chair

Wasco kathys@co.wasco.or.us Wasco County Court, 

511 Washington St. 

Ste. 101, The Dalles, 

OR 97058

Saturday, December 31, 2022

(Comm. Expires @ same time)

Celeste Hill-Thomas Wasco celesteht@mcmc.net

celesteht49@gmail.com

1700 E. 19th St., The 

Dalles, OR 97058

Friday, December 31, 2021

Taylor Steen Wasco rosenthal.taylor@gmail.com 708 Spey Rd., Maupin, 

OR 97037

Friday, December 31, 2021

NCPHD BOARD OF HEALTH MEMBERS

mailto:pat.shannon@co.gilliam.or.us
mailto:dsperry.sgilliamhealth@gmail.com
mailto:tenaf@arlingtonclinic.org
mailto:jbird@co.sherman.or.us
mailto:rbngv@hotmail.com
mailto:jaymethompson2014@gmail.com
mailto:kathys@co.wasco.or.us
mailto:celesteht@mcmc.net
mailto:celesteht@mcmc.net
mailto:rosenthal.taylor@gmail.com

	AgendaBOHMtg JANUARY 12  21
	11 10 20 Draft BOH MTGMinutes
	NOV 2020 A-P CHECK REPORT
	NOV 2020

	DEC 2020 A-P CHECK REPORT
	2021 Board of Health Dates & Agendas Packet Materials
	NCPHD 2021 HOLIDAY CLOSURES
	9-30-20 fiscal report
	Covid Funding Amounts through 11-30-20
	20-21 General And Auto Liability Coverage Agreement
	December 2020 & January 2021 Contract Summary
	January 2021 Interim Directors Report
	FYI BoardOfHealth Members 2021



